COMPREHENSIVE MODELLING ON VARIOUS SOLAR PHOTOVOLTAIC TECHNOLOGIES BASED ON LOCAL CLIMATE CONDITIONS: THE POTENTIAL, LIMITATIONS AND ECONOMIC IMPACT

EDBERT HUAM JUN PING

A project report submitted in partial fulfilment of the requirements for the award of Master of Engineering (Electrical)

Lee Kong Chian Faculty of Engineering and Science Universiti Tunku Abdul Rahman

Jan 2022

DECLARATION

I hereby declare that this project report is based on my original work except for citations and quotations which have been duly acknowledged. I also declare that it has not been previously and concurrently submitted for any other degree or award at UTAR or other institutions.

Signature	:	- Jut
Name	:	EDBERT HUAM JUN PING
ID No.	:	2102592
Date	:	23 th April 2022

APPROVAL FOR SUBMISSION

I certify that this project report entitled "COMPREHENSIVE MODELLING ON VARIOUS SOLAR PHOTOVOLTAIC TECHNOLOGIES BASED ON LOCAL CLIMATE CONDITIONS: THE POTENTIAL, LIMITATION AND ECONOMIC IMPACT" was prepared by EDBERT HUAM JUN PING has met the required standard for submission in partial fulfilment of the requirements for the award of Master of Engineering (Electrical) at Universiti Tunku Abdul Rahman.

Approved by,

Signature	:	K.K.Chong
Supervisor	:	PROF. DR. CHONG KOK KEONG
Date	:	23 th April 2022
Signature	:	
Co-Supervisor	:	
Date	:	

The copyright of this report belongs to the author under the terms of the copyright Act 1987 as qualified by Intellectual Property Policy of Universiti Tunku Abdul Rahman. Due acknowledgement shall always be made of the use of any material contained in, or derived from, this report.

© 2022, EDBERT HUAM JUN PING. All right reserved.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

I would like to thank everyone who had contributed to the successful completion of this project. I would like to express my gratitude to my research supervisor, Dr. Chong Kok Keong for his invaluable advice, guidance and his enormous patience throughout the development of the research.

In addition, I would also like to express my gratitude to my loving parents and friends who had helped and given me encouragement. In addition, I would also like to express my gratitude to my loving parents and friends who had helped and given me encouragement for completing this project.

Lastly, I would like to thank Dr Nick Engerer from Solcast, for offering his support and assistance for accessing the data provided by Solcast[©]. In addition, Dr Nick also help in topping up the credits needed to access and download the historical metrological data based on the location of the case studies in this project.

ABSTRACT

Solar Photovoltaic is a type of renewable energy technology that converts solar energy into electrical energy. This type of electricity generation does not produce any carbon dioxide (CO2) towards the surroundings as compared to burning of fossil fuels. Hence, this technology is a clean and environmentally friendly. However, not all solar power plant project is successful as it may prone to lack of planning, design, estimation and financial that will lead to failure operation of solar power plants. Since Malaysia is a county situated at the equator, where abundant of solar is available. In order to fully utilize the solar energy, it is recommended to install the solar panel with tilted angle to obtain the maximum solar irradiation, while able to generate income and electricity.

The aim and objective in this project consist of computation modelling of python programming using the metrological data of the local climate, where the annual average solar irradiation, optimum tilt angle, orientation of solar panel and the maximum solar irradiation received in a year. Next, in a specific area of land, the amount of carbon dioxide emission due to deforestation will be compared with the carbon dioxide avoidance due to installation of solar panel. This is to estimate whether the area of land is suitable for solar panel installation in order to introduce more renewable energy than fossil fuels. If the carbon dioxide emission is more than carbon dioxide avoidance, that area of land is not recommended for installation and should be left untouched. Lastly, the investment cost and annual income generated by the solar farm is estimated, while calculating the estimated payback period of the project.

For the accuracy of simulation in estimating the tilt angle and orientation angle, the simulated results are compared with the literature review results and found out the overall accuracy is 66.67%, which is above average and acceptable. In addition, the percentage error obtained between the solar irradiation received is within the range of 1-2% error, which is acceptable. Next, the carbon dioxide presence and carbon dioxide avoidance are highly dependent on the area of clearance, local climate and electricity generated. The overall solar sites are able to avoid the carbon dioxide when it is operating. Lastly, the investment cost, annual income and payback period for specific solar sites are estimated as it will depends on the local interest rate and inflation rate.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ii
iii
v
vi
vii
xi
xiii
xiii
xvii
xviii

CHAPTER 1

INTRO	DUCTION	1
1.1	General Introduction	1
1.2	Importance of the Study	3
1.3	Problem Statement	4
1.4	Aims and Objectives	5
1.5	Scope and Limitation of the Study	5
1.6	Contribution of the Study	6
1.7	Outline of the Report	7
1.8	Gantt Chart	7

2 LITERATURE REVIEW

2.1	Introduction	10
2.2	Time-zone for Case Study	11
2.3	Literature Review on Fixed Tilted Angle	12
2.4	Method for Determine Cosine Effect Formula for 3D Modelling	g 14
2.5	Literature Review On-Site Experiment	19

10

2.6	Types of Solar Panels in the Market.	24
2.7	Literature Review on Deforestation for Solar Photovoltaic	26
2.8	Reliability of Global Forest Watch	26
2.9	Presence of Carbon Dioxide due to Absent of Forest	27
2.10	Amount of Energy Generation in a year	28
2.11	Calculation of CO2 avoidance	
2.12	Economic Impact	29
	2.12.1 Interest Rate and Inflation Rate	30
	2.12.2 Feed in Tariff and Net Metering System	30
	2.12.3 Rates Credit for Electricity Produced	33
	2.12.4 Investment Cost on Solar PV	34
2.13	Summary	35

3	MET	HODOLO	DGY AND WORK PLAN	37
	3.1	Introdu	ction	37
	3.2	Metrolo	gical Data	37
	3.3	Softwar	re	38
	3.4	Solar S	ites	39
	3.5	List of	Formulas	49
		3.5.1	Declination angle	49
		3.5.2	Hour angle	49
		3.5.3	Equation of time (EOT)	49
		3.5.4	Solar Time	49
		3.5.5	Altitude angle	50
		3.5.6	Azimuth angle	50
		3.5.7	Zenith Angle	51
		3.5.8	Daily Solar Irradiation	51
		3.5.9	Annual Solar Irradiation	51
		3.5.10	Cosine effect	52
		3.5.10.2	Cosine loss experienced by the solar panel	53
	3.6	Manual	Steps for Downloading Data from Solcast©	54
	3.7	Determ	ination of Number of Days, Angle X and Equ	ation of
	Time	(EOT)		56

3.8	Determine Sun Position	60
3.9	Determine Optimum Tilt and Orientation Angle for	Solar
Panel		63
3.10	Amount of Energy Generation in a Year	66
3.11	Presence of Carbon Dioxide due to Absent of Forest	67
3.12	Calculation of CO2 avoidance	68
3.13	Economic Impact	70
3.14	Summary	72

4	RESUI	LTS AND DISCUSSIONS	74
	4.1	Introduction	74
	4.2	Compilation of GHI for Each Solar Sites	74
	4.3	Ranking of Solar Sites	81
	4.4	Maximum Total Solar Irradiation (Wh/m2) with Optimum	Tilt
	and Ori	entation Angle	82
	4.5	Comparison with On-site results	89
	4.6	Accuracy of Simulation	101
		4.6.1 Comparison of GHI received with on-site results	105
	4.7	Presence of Carbon Dioxide due to Absent of Forest	107
	4.8	Amount of Energy Generation in a Year	110
	4.9	Calculation of CO2 avoidance	112
	4.10	Economic Impact	117
		4.10.1 Special Case Study on Interest Rate	126
	4.11	Summary	127

5	CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS		
	5.1	Conclusions	128
	5.2	Recommendations for future work	129

130

ix

APPENDICES

APPENDIX A: Python Programming Part 1: Read and Input File into
Python 139
APPENDIX B: Python Programming Part 2: Reconfigure the Datetime
of the Input File into Malaysia Timing 140
APPENDIX C: Python Programming Part 3: Determine the Number of
Days, Angle X and Equation of Time141
APPENDIX D: Python Programming Part 4: Determine the Solar Time
142
APPENDIX E: Python Programming Part 5: Determine the Sun
Position 143
APPENDIX F: Python Programming Part 6: Determine the Optimum
Tilt and Orientation of Solar Panel for Total Maximum Solar Received
for a year 145
APPENDIX G: Python Programming Part 7: Model the optimum tilt
angle in 3D Graph 147
APPENDIX H: Python Programming Part 8: Estimate the
Environmental Impact of the Simulation 149
APPENDIX I: Python Programming Part 9: Estimate the Economic
Impact of the Simulation 151

139

LIST OF TABLES

Table 1.1: Gantt Chart Project 1	7
Table 1.2: Gantt Chart Project 2	8
Table 2.1: Comparison Table of Different On-Site Parameters	23
Table 2.2: Specification of FirstSolar Module	24
Table 2.3: Specification of TrinaSolar Module	25
Table 2.4: CO2 Avoidance Factor for Different Region	29
Table 2.5: Concept of NEM	31
Table 2.6: Cost Breakdown for Investment Cost	35
Table 3.1: Accuracy of Solcast	38
Table 3.2: 17 Solar Sites for Modelling	40
Table 3.3: Area of Each Solar Sites	45
Table 3.4: CO2 Avoidance Factor for Different Region	68
Table 3.5(a): Working Step of Estimating the Annual Income of Solar Farm.	71
Table 3.5(b): Working Step of Calculation Total Capacity of Solar Farm.	71
Table 3.5(c): Working Step of Calculation of Investment Cost of Solar Farm.	71
Table 4.1: GHI for Each Solar Sites	75
Table 4.2: Ranking of Each Solar Site based on GHI	81

Table 4.3: The Optimum Tilt and Orientation Angle for Each Solar	
Sites	83
Table 4.4: Simulation Results for Each Literature Review	90
Table 4.5: Summary and Comparison with Simulation and Actual Results	93
Table 4.6: Accept/Reject for Similarity of Results	101
Table 4.7: Percentage Difference between Simulation and Actual Parameters	105
Table 4.8: Estimation Carbon Dioxide Presence	108
Table 4.9: Power Output from Solar Irradiation	111
Table 4.10: Carbon Dioxide Avoided.	112
Table 4.11: Net Carbon Dioxide for Each Solar SItes.	114
Table 4.12(a): Annual Income Calculation for Each Solar Sites	118
Table 4.12(b): Total Capacity for Each Solar Sites	118
Table 4.12(c): Investment Cost for Each Solar Sites	119
Table 4.12(d): Payback Period Estimated	123
Table 4.13: Effect of Interest Rate on Payback Period.	126

LIST OF FIGURES

Figure 1.1 Solar PV Towards the Grid Connection	2
Figure 1.2: Statistic on ScienceDirect Published Paper	2
Figure 1.3: 17 Sustainable Development Goals	3
Figure 2.1: Time-zone of Solcast Data	11
Figure 2.2: Cost difference for Fixed and One Axis PV	13
Figure 2.3: Incident Angle for 3D Modelling	14
Figure 2.4: 3D Modelling for Incident Angle	15
Figure 2.5: India Case Study	20
Figure 2.6: Turkey Case Study	20
Figure 2.7: Global Forest Watch	27
Figure 2.8: Interest and Inflation Rate in Malaysia	30
Figure 2.9: NEM with Capacity	33
Figure 2.10: Electricity Tariff (RM/kWh)	34
Figure 3.1: Cosine Loss on Horizontal Plane (2D)	53
Figure 3.2: Flowchart on Downloading Solcast Data.	55
Figure 3.3: Flowchart on the Formula of Days, Angle and EOT.	56
Figure 3.4: Flowchart on Determine Sun Position	60
Figure 3.5: Flowchart on the Summation of Total Solar Irradiation	
on a Given Angle	63
Figure 3.6: Solar Panel Facing Direction Angle	65

Figure 3.7: Flowchart on Choosing the Maximum Total Solar	
Irradiation	65
Figure 3.8: Flowchart on Calculation of Energy Output with efficiency (kWh/m2)	66
Figure 3.9: Flowchart on estimating the presence of carbon dioxide	
due to deforestation (tCO2/m2)	67
Figure 3.10: Flowchart on Calculation of CO2 Avoidance.	68
Figure 3.11: Flowchart on Calculation of Annual Income with	
Various Parameter Given	70
Figure 4.1: Percentage Difference between Simulation and Actual	
Parameters	106
Figure 4.2: Environmental Impact of Installation of Solar PV.	116
Figure 4.3: Investment Cost, Annual Income, Payback Period	124

LIST OF EQUATIONS

Equation 1: Minutes per degrees	11
Equation 2: Standard Longitude from UTC	11
Equation 3: Formula of cosine incident angle	15
Equation 4: Solar Irradiation on the surface of PV panel (cosine effect included)	15
Equation 5: Total Solar Irradiation on the surface of PV panel (with diffuse components)	15
Equation 6: Point of Sun and Normal PV	16
Equation 7: Z axis component of PV	16
Equation 8: Z axis component of Sun	16
Equation 9: X axis component of PV	16
Equation 10: X axis component of Sun	16
Equation 11: Y axis component of PV	16
Equation 12: Y axis component of Sun	16
Equation 13: Formula of Distance between Point of Sun and PV	16
Equation 14: X component distance	16
Equation 15: Y component distance	16
Equation 16: Z component distance	17
Equation 17: X, Y, Z component distance	17
Equation 18: X, Y, Z component distance	17

Equation 19: Formula of Distance between Point of Sun and PV	17
Equation 20: Formula of angle between Sun and PV	17
Equation 21: Length of OPN	17
Equation 22: Length of OPS	17
Equation 23: Multiplication of OPN and OPS	17
Equation 24: Substitution of values	18
Equation 25: Initial Formula of Incident Angle between Sun and	
PV	18
Equation 26: Trigonometric Identities	18
Equation 27: Final Formula of Incident Angle between Sun and PV	
	18
Equation 28: Equation of tCO2 emission per hectare of land	27

LIST OF SYMBOLS / ABBREVIATIONS

<i>CO2</i>	Carbon Dioxide
Solar PV	Solar PhotoVoltaic
DC	Direct Current
AC	Alternating Current
DNI	Direct Normal Irradiance (W/m2)
DHI	Diffuse Horizontal Irradiance (W/m2)
GHI	Global Horizontal Irradiance (W/m2)
TNB	Tenaga National Berhad
UTC	Universal Time Coordiante
GMT	Greenwich Mean Time
A_s	Solar Azimuth from North
A_{PV}	Panel Azimuth from North
I_N	Solar Irradiation on Normal Surface of PV Panel
I _{DNI}	Direct Normal Irradiation on Horizontal Surface of PV Panel
I _{DHI}	Diffuse Horizontal Irradiation on Horizontal Surface of PV Panel
IT	Total Solar Irradiation onto the surface of PV Panel
GFW	Global Forest Watch
На	Hectare
tCO2	Tons Carbon Dioxide
kWh	KiloWatt Hour
MWh	MegaWatt Hour
i	Interest Rate
j	Inflation Rate
i'	Real Interest Rate
NEM	Net Metering
3D	Three Dimensional
EOT	Equation of Time
kWh/m2	KiloWatt Hour per Meter Square (Solar Irradiation)

LIST OF APPENDICES

APPENDIX A: Python Programming Part 1: Read and Input File								
into Python	139							
APPENDIX B: Python Programming Part 2: Reconfigure the								
Datetime of the Input File into Malaysia Timing	140							
APPENDIX C: Python Programming Part 3: Determine the								
Number of Days, Angle X and Equation of Time	141							
APPENDIX D: Python Programming Part 4: Determine the Solar								
Time	142							
APPENDIX E: Python Programming Part 5: Determine the Sun								
Position	143							
APPENDIX F: Python Programming Part 6: Determine the								
Optimum Tilt and Orientation of Solar Panel for								
Total Maximum Solar Received for a year	145							
APPENDIX G: Python Programming Part 7: Model the optimum								
tilt angle in 3D Graph	147							
APPENDIX H: Python Programming Part 8: Estimate the								
Environmental Impact of the Simulation	149							
APPENDIX I: Python Programming Part 9: Estimate the								
Economic Impact of the Simulation	151							

CHAPTER 1

INTRODUCTION

1.1 General Introduction

Renewable energy is a type of energy that can be obtainable from the nature such as wind, solar, water and others (Zoe, 2021). Renewable energy technology is able to convert this natural energy into another form of energy which are the electrical, mechanical, chemical and others. On the other hand, a non-renewable energy is a type of energy that cannot be reproduce once and will be depleted once it has been used. The example of non-renewable energy are petroleum, natural gas, coal and others (Harrington, 2009). Both renewable and non-renewable energy have similar purposes, which provide energy for human activities; however, renewable energy is able to replenish its resources whereas non-renewable energy does not (NationalGeographic, 2022). Another concern of using non-renewable energy as source is due to its environmental impact. GreenTumble (2017), mentioned that this type of energy produces various greenhouse gases, mainly on carbon dioxide (CO2) is being released towards the surrounding upon burning of fossil fuels. With the increasing level of carbon dioxide, the greenhouse effect increase, which leads to the temperature of the Earth increase due to the heat is being trapped at the atmosphere. Hence, global warming effect activates (BBK, 2022). Mankind discovered the non-regeneration and environmental effect of utilizing the non-renewable energy, they seek to focus in obtaining an alternative solution, which is the usage of renewable energy, where free from environmental effect and reliable energy sources can be achieved (Myisha, 2021).

One of the renewable energy technologies mentioned is the solar photovoltaic technology, also know as solar PV. The basic components that made up of the PV system are numerous solar cells, where it converts the incoming solar energy into electrical energy. These solar cells convert the electricity in a direct current (DC) as an output. Often the solar PV is connected to the grid, which is an AC based. Hence, the solar PV is connected to an inverter before injecting the output electricity towards the grid. The main purpose of inverter is to convert the output DC electricity from the solar cells to AC electricity to connect to the grid (Louis, 2018). The DC power convert by

the solar cells is not always constant as the intensity of the incoming sunlight are different from time to time (Deolalkar, 2016). Figure 1.1 shows an example on how solar energy is being converted to AC power towards the grid.



Figure 1.1 Solar PV towards the Grid Connection (Nallapaneni, 2019).

Malaysia is a country with a geographic location situation at the equator, where solar energy is abundant at the equator (Gerardo, 2005). Since solar energy is abundant, it is recommended to explore the advantage and opportunity for the development of solar photovoltaic technology, which is a safer option towards the environment. According to ScienceDirect, a website publisher with various journals, papers and research on large scale of topics, specifically solar energy. Based on the title "Solar Photovoltaic AND Malaysia", the numbers of paper produces are increased each year (2016 to 2021), meaning that the development and research on solar energy are still in progress and improved each year. Figure 1.2 shows the published paper each year obtained from ScienceDirect.



Figure 1.2: Statistic on ScienceDirect Published Paper.

1.2 Importance of the Study

Since solar photovoltaic requires solar energy to operate, which is a clean and renewable energy that can be obtained and convert to electricity during daytime. In terms of economic impact, the implementation of solar panel helps to reduce the cost of electricity bills. According to Dr Ermeey through Bernama (2021), mentioned that UITM successfully install solar panels with a capacity of 1.6 MW, where the electricity bills is able to save up to 20% monthly. Furthermore, he mentioned that the usage of solar energy should be continued to transform the country into a carbon neutral and be able to generate income for the country.

The study is important is because it helps achieving the 4 out of 17 sustainable development goals which is shown in Figure 1.3.



Figure 1.3: 17 Sustainable Development Goals (UN, 2022).

Goals	Remarks
7. Affordable and Clean Energy	The implementation of solar
	photovoltaic to obtain the maximum
	solar irradiation based on local climate.
15. Life on Land	To estimate the carbon dioxide reduction
	by operating solar farm.
8. Decent work and economic growth	To introduce the income generated by
	operation of solar farm.
4. Quality Education	Able to simulate a model using Python
	Programming

In this study, there are 4 main goals will be achieved which are:

1.3 Problem Statement

According to Isidoro (2017), mentioned that solar project will experience failure due to 3 main parameters, which are the design, PV module and environmental condition during implementation. For example, different location has different solar irradiation, meaning that without proper survey, even the best solar panel is unable to harvest the solar energy to its maximum potential and may lead to a poor sustainability.

Based on the observations from Solynta (2017), stated one of the main reasons that the solar farm project failed is due to lack of planning, design, estimation and financing. Once the company ignore this step and process in installing, the investment cost upon the project will be dissipated. In terms of environmental impact, trees were cleared to install the solar panels, however, when the performance of the solar plant does not exceed expectation, the project may cease its operation and abandoned. (Casey, 2019).

Hence, the computational modelling in this project is implemented for estimate the optimum tilt and orientation angle to obtain the maximum solar irradiation, environmental impact with carbon dioxide reduction, economic impact with payback period as a pre-estimation value for any individual that interested in setting up a solar farm based on local climate.

1.4 Aims and Objectives

This proposed project aims to perform the case study on various renowned solar farms in Malaysia based on different objectives.

- To run a computational model by using Python Programming for a year of metrological data from Solcast © for each solar site
- 2. To estimate the annual average solar irradiation and peak sun hours received on each of the solar sites.
- 3. To determine among the 17 solar sites, by ranking the solar sites based on the solar irradiation received for a year.
- 4. To compute the sun position of the solar sites using the formula given in Chapter 3.
- 5. To model the suitable tilt angle, azimuth of the solar panel based on the maximum total solar irradiation of the year in 3D.
- 6. To estimate the carbon dioxide presence based on the area of case study due to deforestation.
- 7. To estimate the carbon dioxide reduction by introducing the solar photovoltaic in the solar sites.
- 8. To estimate the investment cost, annual income and payback period of the solar site.

1.5 Scope and Limitation of the Study

This project scope is to perform case study on 17 solar sites, for the parameters of annual average solar received, peak sun hours per day, sun position, DNI, GHI, ranking of solar sites, optimum tilt angle, azimuth of the solar panel, maximum total solar irradiation received and carbon dioxide emission reduction for each solar site.

The first limitation of this study is that all these results are based on the metrological data provided by Solcast © and theoretical formula results. Therefore, a comparison of results between the project results generated and the actual results is needed to be performed, for example on-site solar panel results.

Another limitation of this study is that only some of the company or owner of the case study solar sites such as Scatec Itramas ©, Solarvest© and others, they are willing to provide values of parameters such as optimum tilt angle and azimuth for this study. This is due to the company's policy, where they are unable to reveal that valuable information. Thus, this study will be used to compare with the simulated results.

Lastly, the carbon dioxide and economic impact in this study is perform. Each study is based on estimation and no reference paper were provided to support the simulated results for the environmental and economic impact respectively. Hence, the simulated results are an estimated value.

1.6 Contribution of the Study

The contribution of the study is to assist researchers or investors in selecting the best solar sites among various location based on variable choices. In addition, a preestimated area for solar panel installation, results tabulation based on historical metrological data can be perform without actual travelling to the specific sites to perform the survey. For a traditional method, the individual is needed to set up the solar panel at a particular location while performing the observation, reading and tabulate the results using the measuring equipment that require cost for purchasing. These steps can be reduced significantly by introducing the computation modelling of solar panel, where this model is developed using Python language.

With this modelling, the individual is able to estimate the optimum tilt angle, azimuth of the solar panel, as well as the estimated total solar irradiation received in a year. This programming is able to perform a one-year data, to find out the optimum angle of the solar panel, at a particular site within a day of duration. All these steps can be performed indoor. The value simulated can acts as a reference for the individual to immediately set up the solar panel, adjust the angle based on the results generated without needed to undergo practical experiment.

Besides, the simulation is able to pre-estimate the presence of carbon dioxide due to deforestation and the estimated area of forest clearance for installation purposes. Lastly, the payback period of the solar farm is performed based on investment cost report, annual income based on tariff rate by TNB, bank interest rate and fuel inflation rates.

1.7 Outline of the Report

This report will have contents divided into several chapters, which is easier for viewer to read. The chapters included in this report are Chapter 1, which presents the introduction, objectives, scope and limitation of this project study. In Chapter 2, the methods from various thesis proposed by the researcher will be stated in this chapter. The proposed methodology used for this project will be carried out in Chapter 3. In Chapter 4, the results and discussion will be provided based on the model simulated. Lastly, conclusion and recommendation for the project is given in order to further improve the project as a wrap up.

1.8 Gantt Chart

Table 1.1 and 1.2 shows the Gantt chart for Project 1 (19^{th} September 2021 ~ 3^{rd} December 2021) and Project 2 (17^{th} January 2022 ~ 8^{th} April 2022) respectively.

Project	W	W	W	W	W	W	W	W	W	W1	W1	W1
Activities	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	0	1	2
Problem												
formulation,												
planning and												
project												
discussion												
Set up project												
Data gathering												
Preliminary												
testing/investiga												
tion												
Computational												
of sun position												
Ranking of solar												
sites												
Report writing												

Table 1.1: Gantt Chart Project 1

Project	W	W	W	W	W	W	W	W	W	W1	W1	W1
Activities	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	0	1	2
Modelling												
of optimum												
tilt angle,												
azimuth												
angle and												
total solar												
irradiation												
Calibration												
for												
accuracy of												
the												
modelling												
Calculation												
of Carbon												
dioxide												
reduction												
for solar												
farm												
Estimation												
of												
investment												
cost,												
annual												
income,												
interest and												
inflation												
rate												
Conclusion												
and												

Table 1.2: Gantt Chart Project 2.

Presentatio						
n						

CHAPTER 2

LITERATURE REVIEW

2.1 Introduction

In this project, the estimation of optimum tilt angle, orientation angle, maximum total solar irradiation, carbon dioxide emission and avoidance, investment cost, annual income and payback period all can estimated by using the formula derived in CHAPTER 2 and CHAPTER 3.

The general idea of the project is obtained that metrological data from Solcast © based on the specific location. Then, the python programming will capture the data and perform analysis. With this data, the formula for determining parameters such as declination angle, solar time, azimuth angle, zenith angle, cosine angle and others can be calculated. The cosine loss is the main factor that affect the maximum solar irradiation received at the particular time. To minimize the cosine loss, the optimum tilt angle is determined by using the formula review.

The implementation of fixed tilt solar panel requires the deforestation of area for the installation. Hence, it is important to estimate the carbon dioxide is able to be reduce when solar panel is installed. Lastly, the economic impact of the solar farm, where the formula for determine the overall cost is reviewed.

2.2 Time-zone for Case Study

	A	В	С
1	PeriodEnd	PeriodStart	Period
2	2020-08-31T02:00:00Z	2020-08-31T01:00:00Z	PT60M
3	2020-08-31T03:00:00Z	2020-08-31T02:00:00Z	PT60M
4	2020-08-31T04:00:00Z	2020-08-31T03:00:00Z	PT60M
5	2020-08-31T05:00:00Z	2020-08-31T04:00:00Z	PT60M
6	2020-08-31T06:00:00Z	2020-08-31T05:00:00Z	PT60M
7	2020-08-31T07:00:00Z	2020-08-31T06:00:00Z	PT60M
8	2020-08-31T08:00:00Z	2020-08-31T07:00:00Z	PT60M
9	2020-08-31T09:00:00Z	2020-08-31T08:00:00Z	PT60M
10	2020-08-31T10:00:00Z	2020-08-31T09:00:00Z	PT60M
11	2020-08-31T11:00:00Z	2020-08-31T10:00:00Z	PT60M
12	2020-08-31T12:00:00Z	2020-08-31T11:00:00Z	PT60M
13	2020-08-31T13:00:00Z	2020-08-31T12:00:00Z	PT60M
14	2020-08-31T14:00:00Z	2020-08-31T13:00:00Z	PT60M
15	2020-08-31T15:00:00Z	2020-08-31T14:00:00Z	PT60M
16	2020-08-31T16:00:00Z	2020-08-31T15:00:00Z	PT60M
17	2020-08-31T17:00:00Z	2020-08-31T16:00:00Z	PT60M
18	2020-08-31T18:00:00Z	2020-08-31T17:00:00Z	PT60M
19	2020-08-31T19:00:00Z	2020-08-31T18:00:00Z	PT60M
20	2020-08-31T20:00:00Z	2020-08-31T19:00:00Z	PT60M
21	1.526846_103.864002_Solcar	1000 00 21T00-00-007	DTCOM

Figure 2.1: Time-zone of Solcast data

As shown in Figure 2.1, the time zone format provided by Solcast © is in Coordinated Universal Time (UTC) format. Therefore, the UTC Time Zone is needed to be changed into Malaysia Time Zone as Case Study is held in Malaysia as shown in Chapter 3: Methodology. As stated in Konrad (2019), mentioned that the Earth rotates once in 24h, which is approximately 360 degrees, hence by calculation,

$$\frac{360^{\circ}}{24hrs} = \frac{360^{\circ}}{24*60} = \frac{360^{\circ}}{1440mins} = \frac{1^{\circ}}{4mins}$$
 Eq.1

In addition, for every 4 minutes, the sun moves to 1 degree of longitude. In order to determine the standard longitude of a location, the difference of local standard clock and the Greenwich Mean Time, then multiply by 15 degrees, as shown in Jonathan (2020) and Jack (2011).

$$Standard \ Longitude = (UTC) * 15$$
 Eq.2

Coordinated Universal Time (UTC) or can be rephrases as Greenwich Mean Time (GMT), where the time zone of this location is default at 0 longitude. According to Hamdan (2017), stated that Malaysia is 8 hours ahead of GMT and UTC, hence for displayed universal, Malaysia Standard Time is UTC + 8.

2.3 Literature Review on Fixed Tilted Angle

According to Qasir (2021), a study conducted on the titled angle of the solar panel throughout a year of solar irradiation. The motivation for the author to introduce a fixed or flexible tilted angle throughout the year is that the solar tracking system is expensive to initialize. By considering a more economic approach, a fixed optimum tilted angle is recommended in order to achieve maximum power and flexible in retrieving sunrays on different date and time.

Different tilted angle of the solar panel will receive different level of solar irradiation on the surface of the solar panel. The author also mentioned that on a given fixed tilted solar panel, the irradiance level of solar will not only be affected by the tilted solar panel, the declination angle of throughout the month will also affect the received solar irradiance. The suitable tilt angle can be determined by various parameters such as declination angle (Phaphithoun, 2016) and the solar radiation on the surface of the solar panel (estimated value) (Dominykas, 2016). Researcher also suggest that in order to improve the solar radiation received by the solar panel, various parameters such as latitude of solar site, weather condition, tilt and azimuth angle will affect the collected radiation annually.

As a reference in Malaysia, the optimum tilt angle of the solar panel annually was 10 degrees, which is higher than the local latitude (Jin, 2017). Besides, another study found that the optimal tilt angle in Malaysia is within the range of 0 degree to 27 degrees throughout the year, from summer to winter seasons (Asad, 2019). Next, a study conducted on the comparison of solar energy between fixed and flexible tilted angle of solar panel in Malaysia. The study found that the adjustment of the tilted angle of the solar panel based on situation have a 40% increase in solar energy received as compared to fixed tilted angle throughout the year.

Another study conducted by Mark (2018), the author creates a compilation of the optimum angle of solar panel throughout different countries, from North to South contingent, from East to West Country. The author that this tilted angle is determined by using the method of "increasing method", where the panel output is being calculated by configuring the tilted angle, up to a maximum panel output being achieved. When the maximum panel output is determined, the tilted angle is concluded to be the optimum tilted angle of the location. A comparison between a horizontal surface and a tilt angle of the PV panel equivalent to the declination angle of the location. According to Soteris (2014) and Danny (2007), mentioned that the incident angle is the angle between the normal to the PV module to the sunlight. In addition, the azimuth of the PV panel is facing the direction of west due south. This setting is to maximize the energy output in the noon but would sacrifice the electricity in the morning.

In addition, Mehmet (2015), mentioned that the sun angle of incidence changes throughout time, the sunshine duration also changes. Thus, the panel should be installed in a fixed position at an optimum inclination angle, in order to received maximum sunlight for the annual timeline.

Research done by Yunus (2019), with the optimum fixed tilt angle throughout monthly, seasonally and annually. The author performs their experiment with the combination of simulation and mathematical calculation method. Therefore, the author concludes that the optimum tilt angle for the location above the equator (2.6N to 30 N), the range is within 5° to 28° in order to maximize the solar energy received by the panel.

The preferred choice for the fixed tilt angle in solar panel are the reduction overall cost as compared to flexible axis. According to the report (David, 2020), shows a comparison of overall cost between fixed tilt and axis tracker in a utility-scale. In Figure 2.2 shows that with a 100MW capacity, the overall price in 2020 for fixed tilt and axis tracker are 0.94 USD/Watt and 1.01 USD/Watt. Therefore, in order to generate electricity while reducing the invested cost, a fixed tilt solar panel pattern is chosen.



Figure 2.2: Cost difference for Fixed and One Axis PV. (David, 2020).

2.4 Method for Determine Cosine Effect Formula for 3D Modelling

According to Joannes (2019), mentioned that different position of PV panel have the ability to benefit from receiving the sunlight and convert into electricity system, whether horizontally or vertically. By changing the orientation, the output of PV panels may vary. Therefore, the relationship between orientation of the PV panel and position of the sun, results in the outcome of the energy production.

The solar panel diagram adapted by Maryon (2021), and Joannes (2019) is shown in Figure 2.3. The parameters involved in the solar collector and sun position are shown in tabulated table below. The author mention that the range for the PV panel tilt angle is within $0 < \beta < 90$. If the tilt angle, $\beta > 90$, meaning that the PV panel is facing towards the ground or shade itself. The range of the sun altitude angle from morning to noon is between $0 < \alpha < 90$ as well as noon to night ($0 < \alpha < 90$) (Amaya, 2019).



Figure 2.3: Incident Angle for 3D modelling. (Joannes, 2019)

Parameters	Definition
θ_z	Zenith angle of the sun position at the
	particular time
β	Tilt angle of the PV panel at the
	particular time
γ	The panel surface azimuth, ES
	(negative), WS (positive)
γ_s	The sun azimuth angle at the particular
	time
θ	The angle of incident between the
	normal of the PV surface and the
	incoming sunlight
I _{DNI}	The direct normal irradiation on the
	horizontal surface panel, data retrieved
	from Solcast.

I _N	The solar irradiation on the normal
	surface of the PV panel at the particular
	time

The overall formula for determining the solar incident angle and the sun position angle at the particular time, (John 2013), (William, 2013) and (Lucien, 2018):

$$\cos\theta = \cos\theta_z \times \cos\beta + \sin\theta_z \times \sin\beta \times \cos(A_s - A_{PV}) \qquad \text{Eq.3}$$

$$I_N = I_{DNI} \cos \theta \qquad \qquad \text{Eq.4}$$

$$I_T = I_{DNI} + I_{DHI}$$
 Eq.5

Where $\theta =$ incident angle, $\theta_z =$ zenith angle, $\beta =$ tilted angle, $A_s =$ solar azimuth starting from north, $A_{pv} =$ panel azimuth from north.

In addition, John (2013), mentioned that if the incident angle, $\theta > 90$, the sun position is behind the solar panel, meaning that at this incident angle, the calculation of the solar received on the panel can be ignored.

The derivation of the formula for calculating the incident angle can be discovered based according to the working steps below. (Powerfromthesun, 2022).



Figure 2.4: 3D Modelling for Incident Angle

Assume both P_N and P_S have the same length from origin,	
$OP_N = OP_S = l$	Eq.6
In Z-axis,	
$Z_N = l \times \cos \beta$	Eq.7
$Z_S = l \times \cos \theta_Z$	Eq.8
In X-axis, is the axis from North to South,	
$X_N = l \times \sin\beta \times A_{PV}$	Eq.9
$X_S = l \times \sin \theta_Z \times A_S$	Eq.10
In Y-axis, is the axis from East to West,	
$Y_N = l \times \sin\beta \times \sin A_{PV}$	Eq.11
$Y_S = l \times \sin \theta_Z \times \sin A_S$	Eq.12
Find the distance between OP_N and OP_{S_1}	
	E 10
$P_N P_S = \sqrt{(X_N - X_S)^2 + (Y_N - Y_S)^2 + (Z_N + Z_S)^2}$	Eq.13
For $(X_N - X_S)^2$,	
$(X_N - X_S)^2 = (l \times \sin\beta \times A_{PV} - l \times \sin\theta_Z \times A_S)^2$	
$= (l \times \sin\beta \times A_{PV})^2 - 2(l \times \sin\beta \times A_{PV})(l \times \sin\theta_Z \times A_S)$	Eq.14
$+ (l \times \sin \theta_Z \times A_S)^2$	
For $(r_N - r_S)^2$, $(V_N - V_S)^2 = (l_N r_S)^2 r_S^2 + (l_N r_S)^2 + (l_N r_S)^$	
$(Y_N - Y_S)^2 = (l \times \sin\beta \times \sin\beta - l \times \sin\beta)^2$	
$= (l \times \sin\beta \times \sin A_{PV})^2 - 2(l \times \sin\beta \times \sin A_{PV})(l \times \sin\theta_Z \times \sin A_S)$	E a 15
$+ (\iota \times \sin \theta_Z \times \sin A_S)^{-1}$	Eq.15
For $(7_{-} - 7_{-})^2$	
$101 (L_N L_S)$,	

$$(Z_N - Z_S)^2 = (l \times \cos \beta - l \times \cos \theta_Z)^2$$

$$= (l \times \cos \beta)^2 - 2(l \times \cos \beta)(l \times \cos \theta_Z) + (l \times \cos \theta_Z)^2 \qquad \text{Eq.16}$$
For $(X_N - X_S)^2 + (Y_N - Y_S)^2 + (Z_N - Z_S)^2$,

$$= (l \times \sin \beta \times A_{PV})^2 - 2(l \times \sin \beta \times A_{PV})(l \times \sin \theta_Z \times A_S)$$

$$+ (l \times \sin \theta_Z \times A_S)^2 + (l \times \sin \beta \times \sin A_{PV})^2$$

$$- 2(l \times \sin \beta \times \sin A_{PV})(l \times \sin \theta_Z \times \sin A_S)$$

$$+ (l \times \sin \theta_Z \times \sin A_S)^2 + (l \times \cos \beta)^2$$

$$- 2(l \times \cos \beta)(l \times \cos \theta_Z) + (l \times \cos \theta_Z)^2$$

$$= l^2(\sin^2\theta_z \cos^2A_s - 2\sin\theta_z \cos A_s \sin\beta \cos A + \sin^2\beta \cos^2A + \sin^2\theta_Z \sin^2A_S)$$

$$- 2\sin\theta_Z \sin A_S \sin\beta \sin A + \sin^2\beta \sin^2A + \cos^2\theta_Z - 2\cos\theta_Z \cos\beta \qquad \text{Eq.17}$$

$$+ \cos^2\beta$$

Since
$$cos^2 x = 1 - sin^2 x$$
, the equation can be reconfigured into:

$$= l^2 (sin^2 \theta_z * (1 - sin^2 A_s) - 2sin \theta_z cos A_s sin \beta cos A + sin^2 \beta * (1 - sin^2 A) + sin^2 \theta_z sin^2 A_s - 2sin \theta_z sin \beta sin A + sin^2 \beta sin^2 A + (1 - sin^2 \theta_z) - 2cos \theta_z cos \beta + (1 - sin^2 \beta)$$

$$= l^2 (2 - 2sin \theta_z cos A_s sin \beta cos A - 2sin \theta_z sin \beta sin A - 2cos \theta_z cos \beta)$$
Eq.18

Substitute to P_NP_{S,}

$$P_N P_S = \sqrt{l^2 (2 - 2sin\theta_z \cos A_s sin\beta \cos A - 2sin\theta_z \sin A_s \sin \beta sinA - 2cos\theta_z \cos \beta)}$$

$$= l\sqrt{(2 - 2\sin\theta_z \cos A_s \sin\beta \cos A - 2\sin\theta_z \sin A_s \sin\beta \sin A - 2\cos\theta_z \cos\beta)}$$
Eq.19

Find the angle between OP_N and $OP_{S,}$

$$\cos\theta_i = \frac{OP_N^2 + OP_S^2 - P_N P_S^2}{2OP_N OP_S}$$
Eq.20

For OP_N^2 ,

 $OP_N^2 = l^2$ Eq.21

For OP_S^2 ,

 $OP_S^2 = l^2$ Eq.22

For $2OP_NOP_S$,

$$2OP_N OP_S = 2l^2 Eq.23$$

$cos heta_i$	
$=\frac{l^2+l^2-l^2(2-2sin\theta_z cosA_s sin\beta cosA-2sin\theta_z sinA_s sin\beta sinA-2cos\theta_z cos\beta)}{2l^2}$	Eq.24
21-	
$2l^{2}\cos\theta_{i} = 2l^{2} - l^{2}(2 - 2\sin\theta_{z}\cos A_{s}\sin\beta\cos A - 2\sin\theta_{z}\sin A_{s}\sin\beta\sin A$	
$-2\cos\theta_z\cos\beta)$	
$cos\theta_i = 1 - 1 + sin\theta_z cosA_s sin\beta cosA + sin\theta_z sinA_s sin\beta sinA + cos\theta_z cos\beta$	
$\cos\theta_i = \sin\theta_z \cos A_s \sin\beta \cos A + \sin\theta_z \sin A_s \sin\beta \sin A + \cos\theta_z \cos\beta$	
$= sin\theta_z sin\beta(cosA_s cosA + sinA_s sinA) + cos\theta_z cos\beta$	Eq.25
Since $cosAcosB + sinAsinB = cos (A - B)$, hence,	
$= sin\theta_z sin\beta cos (A_s - A) + cos\theta_z cos\beta$	F 96
	Eq.26
Therefore, the equation to find the incident angle of the solar panel is:	
$cos\theta_i = sin\theta_z sin\beta cos (A_s - A) + cos\theta_z cos\beta$	Eq.27

When the tilt angle of the panel lies horizontally, $\beta = 0$, the incident angle between the normal of the panel and sunray will be equals to the zenith angle of the sun, $\theta = \theta_z$. (Sergio, 2020) (Ekadewi, 2013).

If the panel is located at Northern hemisphere and south facing, the surface azimuth angle is 180 degrees starting from clockwise North. When the solar panels are installed in the northern hemisphere, it will be facing south $A_{panel} = 180^{\circ}$, whereas solar panel installed in the southern hemisphere, it will be facing north $(A_{panel} = 180^{\circ})$.

In order to determine which formula is suitable for this project, formula is used where assumed at the location site of 6.47N, 100.42E, with the solar time of 2020-08-31 13:48:14, given the tilt angle is 0 degree (horizontal flat PV panel), facing south, the incident angle of the surface for each formula is being tabulated.

Formula description	$\cos\theta = \cos\theta_z \times \cos\beta$
	$+\sin\theta_z \times \sin\beta \times \cos(A_s - A_{pv})$
Sun Incident angle	26.88
Sun Zenith angle	26.88
Direct Normal Irradiation	287
Solar Received on panel formula	$I = DNI * \cos(Incident \ angle))$
------------------------------------	-------------------------------------
Solar received on panel	256

By theory, the formula can be used for estimating the solar received on the horizontal surface of the solar panel due to cosine effect, when the solar panel is at horizontal position, the incident angle is equals to the zenith angle.

2.5 Literature Review On-Site Experiment

According to a case study conducted by Nur (2018), which was located at Padang Besar, Perlis, with the geographical Latitude and Longitude of 6°38'58" N and 100°15'23" E, which is equivalent to 6.649444N, 100.256389E. The author undergoes the experiment with the duration of total 10 days in July 2017, which are 3rd, 5th, 7th, 10th, 12th, 14th, 17th, 19th, 21st and 24th, starting from 9am to 5pm each day with one hour interval.

The author sets up various tilt angles, ranging from -25 to +25 degrees, with intervals of 5, for 6 solar panels. During the testing duration, the author uses SEAWARD irradiance meter for data collection and recorded into CSV file for further analysis and discussion. In addition, 3 orientation angle is being set up which are:

- 1. North 70-degree East
- 2. South 20-degree East
- 3. True South 180 degree.

In summary, the author determined that the optimum tilt and orientation of the solar panel is -10 degree and South 20-degree East in July 2017. Besides, the total solar insolation received within 10 days of July 2017, are within the range of 43922.83 to 43295.46 Wh/m2.

Location	Coordinate	Optimum Tilt Angle
Padang Besar, Perlis	6.649444N, 100.256389	-10 degree

A solar panel set up by Ajao (2013), in Nigeria in order to determine the optimum tilt angle of the solar panel. The solar panel set up in Ilorin, Nigeria, with the experiment duration between May and June 2012 for 10 days. The angle set up for the solar panel ranges from 0 degree to 30 degree. The azimuth of the solar panel is facing

true south, which means 180 degrees from North. The summary of the experiment is that the actual optimum tilt angle is 22 degrees as compared to the author theoretical value which is 14 degrees.

Location	Coordinate	Optimum Tilt Angle
Ilorin, Nigeria	8.5373N, 4.5444E	22 degrees

An author from India, Manoj (2020), set up various solar panel with different tilt angle in order to determine the suitable and optimum throughout the Year of 2018, January to December. The location set up at 30.748098N, 76.757141E as shown in Figure 2.5. The methodology of the author is by determine the suitable tilt angle for each season in order to achieve maximum solar irradiation as well as reducing labour cost. The tilt angle installation is between 10 degree and 40 degrees. For every hour in a year, the author recorded the real time data obtained from the solar panel and compare with the theoretical results. Although the author did not specify the orientation of the solar panel, but the optimum tilt angle varies between 26 degree and 28 degrees, with the help of actual real time experiment results.

Location			Coordinate	Optimum Tilt Angle
University	Institute	of	30.748098N, 76.757141E	26 degree and 28 degrees
Engineering		and		
Technology	(UII	ET),		
Panjab	Univers	sity,		
Chandigarh				







Figure 2.6: Turkey Case Study

Based on a case study conducted by Basharat (2016), the author aims to explore the potential of solar photovoltaic in India by utilizing the subtropical climate conditions. Two locations in India, which are Aligarh city (27.89°N, 78.08°E) and New Delhi (28.61°N, 77.20°E) undergoes the experiment to determine the optimum tilt angle based on the solar radiation throughout the year. The author set up in two locations for three years, which is from 2013 to 2016 for each minute. The settings for tilt angle are ranging from 0 to 90 with 10-degree interval. After compilation and analysis, the author summarizes that the optimum fixed tilt angle annually for Aligarh City is 27.62°, whereas New Delhi is 27.95°, these optimum tilt angles are almost identical to the latitude of both locations. In addition, with the implementation of fixed annual surface, the energy increased compared to horizontal flat surface for Aligarh City and New Delhi are 6.51% and 7.58% respectively. The author also recommends that the annual fixed tilt angle helps in reduction of installation and operation cost which monthly and seasonally tilt angle unable to achieve.

Location	Coordinate	Optimum Tilt Angle
Aligarh city	27.89°N, 78.08°E	27.62°
New Delhi	28.61°N, 77.20°E	27.95°

Akif (2015) also conducts a case study by set up solar panels at Bilecik, Turkey. The author performs this experiment is to determine the optimum tilt angle for Bilecik, with mathematical and practical. The location is situated at 40-degree latitude. 6 solar panels were setted up with the angle range from 10 degree to 60 degree with a duration study from May to August. The author concludes that by fixing the tilt angle of the solar panel, it is 10 degrees, which is differ from the mathematical value. The author discussed that is the practical value is different from mathematical value, meaning that the solar PV results is affected due to the environmental factor.

Location	Coordinate	Optimum Tilt Angle
Bilecik, Turkey	40.189697 N, 29.966415E	10 degrees

Another author from Banu (2019), have set up solar panels on two different locations, which was at Chennai, India and Beijing, China. The latitude and longitude of both of the location are tabulated as below.

Location	Latitude	Longitude
Chennai, India	13.0827 N	80.2707 E
Beijing, China	39.9042 N	116.4074 E

The author selects these two locations for the case study is due to its high population and the demand of power supply stated by ETEnergyWorld (2018). In addition, these two countries are considered to be the as the largest country with the highest amount of installation of solar panel as compared to the world, mentioned by Chisaki (2018). Although the author did not specific the year, date and duration time for the case study, the optimum tilt angle and azimuth based on the parameter's planes of array. The author specified that the plane of array is the value of direct irradiation shine onto the solar array without including the shading and soiling factors. Through this parameter, the author chooses the highest value of POA by configuring the tilt angle and azimuth angle of the panel as shown in table below. However, the tilt angle is not recommended to be at 0 degree, this is due to the rainwater stagnant on the panel will affect the efficiency of the panel.

Location	Range of Optimum tilt angle	Range of Optimum Azimuth
Chennai, India	0-to-36-degree tilt.	South (180), South-East (135)
		and South-West (225)
Beijing, China	0-to-54-degree tilt.	South (180), South-East (135)
		and South-West (225)

Table 2.1 shows the comparison on various researchers in the field of solar photovoltaic, along with the proposed optimum tilt angle, azimuth and the total solar received by each author based on the actual results captured by the on-site solar panel.

No.	Author's	Location	Geographic	Date	Duration	Tilt angle	Azimuth	Total solar received
	Name							
1	Nur (2018)	Padang Besar, Perlis	6.649444N,	July 2017	10 days	-10 degree	South 20-degree East	43922.83 to 43295.46
			100.256389E					Wh/m2.
2	Ajao (2013)	Ilorin, Nigeria	8.5373N, 4.5444E	May and	10 days	22 degrees	Facing South	-
				June 2012				
3	Manoj	Panjab University Chandigarh, India	30.748098N,	Year of	Whole Year	30 degrees to 40	-	-
	(2020)		76.757141E	2018		degrees		
4	Basharat	Aligarh city, India	27.89°N, 78.08°E	Year 2013	3 Years	27.62°	-	28.97 MJ/m ² -day
	(2016)			to 2016				(April)
5	Basharat	New Dehli, India	28.61°N, 77.20°E	Year 2013	3 Years	27.95°	-	24.31 MJ/m ² -day
	(2016)			to 2016				(April)
6	Akif (2015)	Bilecik Seyh Edebali University	40.189697N,	Year 2014	May to	Average: 10°	-	-
		Engineering Faculty, Turkey	29.966415 E		August			
7	Banu (2019)	Chennai, India	13.0827 N, 80.2707	-	-	0° to 36°	South (180), South-East	-
			Е				(135) and South-West (225)	
8	Banu (2019)	Beijing, China	39.9042 N,	-	-	0° to 54°	South (180), South-East	-
			116.4074 E				(135) and South-West (225)	

Table 2.1: Comparison Table of Different On-Site Parameters

A comparison in Chapter 4 will be shown in order to prove and determine whether this project is reliable while performing the accuracy of this project. This is because the generated results are based on theoretical results, therefore a comparison between theoretical and on-site results are recommended to further enhance the reliability of the results.

2.6 Types of Solar Panels in the Market.

According to EnergySage (2022), stated that there are various sizes of solar panels, which can be classified into two major sectors: commercial and residential. In this project, the majority of the case study is based on a large solar farm, therefore, the project estimation will be based on the commercial standard size and specifications (A1ASolar, 2022). On average, the residential solar panel have 72 number of solar cells, whereas commercial have 96 cells. The sizing of the residential is 65'' by 39'' (1651 x 991mm) whereas the size of commercial solar panel is 78'' by 39'' (1981 x 991mm). The commercial standard has rated watts between 200W to 400W being produced into the market. Therefore, commercial sized solar panel is recommended to be installed in most cases due to higher power and efficiency. Table 2.2 below shows the datasheet and specifications of FirstSolar © that one of the solar sites (Bukit Kayu Hitam, SolarVest©) used and as a reference for this project. The solar panel used for the solar site in SolarVest© is FirstSolar© Thin Film, 115W with an efficiency of 16%. (FirstSolar, 2022).

Parameters	Commercial Panels
Туре	FS-4115-3
Rated Power (W)	115
Open Circuit Voltage (Voc)	87.6
Short Circuit Voltage (Isc)	1.83
Maximum Voltage (Vmp)	69.3
Maximum Current (Imp)	1.66
Efficiency (%)	16

 Table 2.2: Specification of FirstSolar Module

Module Dimension (L x W x H) (mm)	1200 x 600 x 6.8
Number of solar panels used (pieces)	105000

In addition, Table 2.3 below shows the datasheet and specifications of Trina© that some of the solar sites (Pendang, Merchang and Jasin) used and as a reference in this project. The solar panel used for the solar site in Scatec Itramast© is Trina© Monocrystalline, Double Glass, 345W with an efficiency of 17.6%. (TrinaSolar, 2017).

Table 2.3: Specification of TrinaSolar Module

Parameters	Commercial Panels
Туре	Monocrystalline, Double Glass
Rated Power (W)	345
Open Circuit Voltage (Voc)	46.4
Short Circuit Voltage (Isc)	9.44
Maximum Voltage (Vmp)	38.4
Maximum Current (Imp)	8.99
Efficiency (%)	17.6
Module Dimension (L x W x H) (mm)	1978 x 992 x 25

Parameters	Pendang	Merchang	Jasin
		(Marang,	(Bemban,
		Terengganu)	Melaka)
Number of solar panels used (pieces)	189510	192420	191130

2.7 Literature Review on Deforestation for Solar Photovoltaic

In this section, literature review on Carbon Dioxide Emission for Solar Photovoltaic will be divided into 3 main parts, which are the production of solar cells, transportation and deforestation. However, for this project, we will focus on the latter, which is the environmental impact of installation of solar photovoltaic by deforestation.

2.8 Reliability of Global Forest Watch

Global Forest Watch (GFW) is a platform that provides data and values online for monitoring forest. GFW is a partnership project which consists of various parties such as World Resources Institute, UNEP, Google and others, in contributing technology and expertise in reviewing the globe's forest landscape that changes in real time (WRI, 2020). With the help of satellite data, advanced computer algorithm and power, GFW provides up to date data for experts and non-experts to access information in order to motivate people by using this information to generate advantages outcome in the future. A study conducted by Zhang (2020), where the accuracy of the Global Forest Watch is being evaluated by utilizing the compare and reference method. The methodology of the author is being using the high-resolution satellite images such as Google Earth and compared with the dataset from Global Forest Watch (GFW). The author selects 100 pixels from GFW randomly and compared with the China satellite images that was divided into several pixels. The sample size of the pixels is about 96364 pixels. The compare and reference are repeated for each pixel, the steps were repeated in order to obtain a better accuracy. Therefore, the author summarizes that the accuracy of the GFW dataset is above 85%. The same author, Zhang (2020), conducted the same experiment, by comparing the satellite images and GFW datasets, found out that the overall accuracy is about 94.5%. The author also concludes that the GFW can be used as a reference data for further reliable assessment.

2.9 Presence of Carbon Dioxide due to Absent of Forest

According to a statistic dashboard done by GlobalForestWatch (2020), mentioned that in the year of 2020 in Malaysia, 122kha of natural forest have been lost, as a result, 85.2Mt of CO2 is present at the surroundings due to the absent of trees that responsible from absorbing the CO2 into O2. By simplification of the equivalent, a simplified equation can be proposed as shown below:

122 kha of natural forest =
$$85.2Mt$$
 of CO2
1ha of natural forest = $\frac{85.2Mt}{122k}$ of CO2
1ha of natural forest = **698.36** t of CO2 Eq.28

Hence, by this equation, this case study able to estimate when an area of hectare forest removed, will contribute to 698.36t of CO2 towards the surroundings, where the absent of trees are unable to absorb the CO2 in the environment. In addition, results in increasing of carbon dioxide level in the surroundings. This is because trees naturally will store a large amount of carbon dioxide and convert into oxygen. However, when an area of forest is being cleared out, a significant amount of carbon dioxide will be released from the destroyed trees to the atmosphere. As a result, it will lead to global warming. (Brendan, 2014).



Figure 2.7: Global Forest Watch (GFW, 2020)

2.10 Amount of Energy Generation in a year

According to Susmita (2012), the formula proposed by the author is:

$Power_{output} = Efficiency \times rate of solar intensity$

Where the value of efficiency is equals to the efficiency of solar module, the rate of solar intensity is the solar radiation in kwh/m2.

2.11 Calculation of CO2 avoidance

Based on the definition of CO2 avoidance by SMA (2010), stated that the avoidance CO2 contributes to the protection of climate and reduction of greenhouse effect. CO2 avoidance is based on the generation of energy from renewable energy, such as solar energy, which do not produce energy during generation. The higher the country's renewable energy sources, the higher the CO2 avoidance, the lower the CO2 emissions. The amount of CO2 avoided is due to the usage of PV systems, where the power is feed into the grid, therefore reducing CO2 emission of the country. The formula proposed are:

Avoided CO2 in kg

= Generated electricity in kWh × factor for CO2 avoidance in kg/kwh

The CO2 avoidance factor can be determined based on the local energy supplier. This factor can be determined by referring to SEDA (2016) and MGTC (2017), where the generate electricity from renewable energy replace the traditional energy sources, such as fossil fuels, the generation of renewable energy hence reduce the greenhouse gas emission towards the surroundings by connecting to the grid systems. According to the CO2 avoidance factor provided by SEDA Malaysia, it shows that the CO2 avoidance factor for peninsular Malaysia is 0.639 tCO2/ MWh, whereas Sabah and Labuan are 0.512 tCO2/ MWh, while Sarawak is 0.364 tCO2/MWh on the latest date (2016).

Region	CO2 avoidance factor (tCO2/MWh)
Peninsular Malaysia	0.639
Sabah	0.512
Sarawak	0.364
Labuan	0.512

Table 2.4: CO2 Avoidance Factor for Different Region

Note: https://www.seda.gov.my/statistics-monitoring/co2-avoidance/

2.12 Economic Impact

According to Lumen (2022), mentioned that a payback period is the time duration that takes to return the investment into a project. The time duration maybe in months or years, which can be determine based on the equation below:

$$n_{pay} = -\frac{In[1 - S_{total}i'/P_{ann}]}{In(1+i')}$$

$$i' = \frac{1+i}{1+j} - 1$$

where i = interest rate and j = inflation rate. According to Chong (2011), the value of interest rate and inflation rate settings are based on bank interest rate and fuel inflation rate respectively. The parameter S_{total} is the total cost of the system, whereas P_{ann} is the total cost saving of the system, which is equivalent to income for the system.

The amount invested in a project is the initial amount that the project needed to be set up. Once the project is set up and ready to implement, the annual cash flow is the output or results of the project where determine if the project is profitable. For example, if the amount annual cash flow is lower, meaning that the payback period will be delayed by an extended amount of time. In addition, (Reniers, 2016), payback period can be categories into short payback and long payback. It is logically preferable for shorter payback, as it proves to be a better sustainability and economically compared to longer payback.

In addition, Palmetto (2022) also pointed that the duration of payback period depends on the location of installation, savings and others. For example, the higher the solar installation, the higher the investment cost, the higher the annual income.

2.12.1 Interest Rate and Inflation Rate

The interest rate referred to is the bank interest rate, where according to RinggitPlus (2022) and TradingEconomics (2022), the estimated average interest rate is about 1.75% on March 2022. In addition, the implementation of low interest rate stated by Bank Negara Malaysia is to assists the national economic recovery. Next, for the inflation rate, according to Nur (2022), mentioned that Malaysia's inflation rate could increase more than 2% due to economic impact on the oil and gas price. Izzul (2021) further explanation on the factors that affect the inflation are due to global food and oil prices. Based on the statistic obtained from TradingEconomics (2022), mention that the fuel inflation rate is estimated about 2.3% in January 2022. The Figure 2.8 shows the latest statistic interest rate and inflation rate respectively.



Figure 2.8: Interest and Inflation Rate in Malaysia (TradingEconomics, 2022). Therefore, based on the literature review of interest rate, inflation rate and formula, the real interest rate formula obtained from Chong (2011) is:

$$i' = \frac{1+i}{1+j} - 1$$
$$= \frac{1+0.0175}{1+0.023} - 1$$
$$= -0.0054$$

2.12.2 Feed in Tariff and Net Metering System

According to the definition by Tenaga National Berhad (TNB), stated that the Net Metering System (NEM) is a new type of systems, which to replace the old system (Tariff System) (FiT) in promoting the usage of renewable energy (TNB, 2022). Feed in Tariff system is different than NEM as it exports all of the solar energy produced into the grid, whereas NEM allows the generation of electrical energy, which results



Table 2.5: Concept of NEM



If the user did not install any solar panel, the electricity bill will be equals to the energy used. However, if the user install solar panel and it generates electricity, NEM system allows the user to utilize the generated electricity, therefore, the incoming electricity reduces, and the electricity bill imposed on the user is also reduced. In addition, if the user produces extra electricity, the additional will be injected back to the grid (SEDA, 2022). According to Abdul (2019), the author concluded that by introducing the Net Metering System in Malaysia, it helps to promote the solar PV installation on every section, including residential and utility. However, this system benefits more towards the medium and large consumers, which is the higher the PV installation size, the higher the cost energy saving as shown in Figure 2.9.



Figure 2.9: NEM with Capacity. (Abdul, 2019).

In this project, the Net Metering System will be used for the analysis of economic impact on the solar farm in Malaysia.

2.12.3 Rates Credit for Electricity Produced

According to a newspaper article from TMR (2022), stated the tariff rate is fixed at **RM 0.395/kwh** in the peninsular Malaysia until further announcement from the Government. A statement by the Energy and Natural Resources Minister, Datuk Dr Shamsul Anuar Nasarah mentioned that the tariff rate is remain unchanged and will be fixed due to the difficulty of Movement Control Order (MCO) experience by the people. In addition, the Malaysian will not suffer from the increasing rate of electricity tariff. Figure 2.10 shows the article published on the newspaper.

Electricity tariff rate remains at 39.5 sen kWh for now, says TNB

Govt has decided to suspend the implementation of the National Energy IBR for the Regulatory Period 3 on Dec 31, 2021

THE average basic electricity tariff rate remains at 39.45 sen per kilowatt hour (kWh) in the peninsula pending the govern-ment's announcement on the new tariff rate. Tenaga Nasional Bhd (TNB) said. In a recent statement, TNB said the government has decided to suspend the implementation of the National Energy Incentive-Based Regulation (IBR) for the Third Regulatory Period (RP3) on Dec 31, 2021. In the meantime, the govern-

In the meantime, the govern

ment also decided to postpone the implementation of electricity tariff adjustment under the Imbatariff adjustment under the Imba-lance Cost Pass Through (ICPT) mechanism from Jan 1, 2022, until a date to be determined. As such, the current rebate rate of two sen/kWh to all electricity con-sumers in the peninsula is main-tained for that period. With the decision to postroop With the decision to postpone this RP3 and ICPT, users in the



that the impact of ICPT imp

peninsula will not experience an increase in basic electricity tariff rates. In June last year, the Energy and Natural Resources Minister Datuk Dr Shamsul Anuar Nasa-rah said due to the challenges

faced by the people caused by the Movement Control Order, the government agreed to finance an additional rebute of 0.87 sen/kWh which involved an allocation amounting to RM493 million from the Electricity Industry Fund (KWIE) to maintain the tariff rate (KWIE) to maintain the tariff rate throughout the year. TNB said the ICPT rebate is partly the result of the overall reduction in actual generation costs for the period of January to here 2021

June 2021.

ral on TNB and will not have any effect

During the period, it said there was a slight increase of average coal price in the global market at US\$70.06 (RM292) per metric tonne (MT) compared to the benchmark coal price set in the base tariff at US\$67.45/MT. Startine from languary 2020

Starting from January 2020, the gas price is set based on Refe-rence Market Price (RMP) which replaced the former two-tier gas

replaced the former two-tier gas pricing mechanism that com-prises Regulated Gas Price and liquified natural gas price. For the period January to June 2021, the average RMP price is RMID716 per million British ther-mal unit (mmBTU) which is lower than the benchmark gas price for the years set in the base tariff at RM27.20/mmBTU, it explained. explained.

explained. "Any shortfall or excess in the ICPT will be funded or trans-ferred to customers via the KWIE fund to aid in the stabilisation of electricity tariff in the future via the gradual build-up of the fund.

fund. "TNB also wishes to inform that the impact of ICPT implementa-tion is neutral on TNB and will not have any effect on its business operations and financial posi-tion," it added. — TMR

Figure 2.10: Electricity Tariff (RM/kWh) (TMR (2022).

Hence, with the given value for the rates, an example, if a solar photovoltaic farm with an installation capacity of 10MW and inverter, the total tariff rates is:

Total tariff rates = RM 0.395/kwh

Investment Cost on Solar PV 2.12.4

In order to produce electricity by utilizing the solar energy, a solar photovoltaic system is needed to be purchase, install, operate and maintain. Therefore, any estimation on the modelling of investment cost can be found in the report (Lyu, 2019), Section 2.3 In this report, the cost breakdown for the PV installation can be classified into two main categories, which are the hardware cost and soft cost. The hardware cost is the module, inverter, structural and electronical components, whereas the software cost consists of planning, installation work, direct labour cost and others. Table 2.6 shows the average estimation ratings for each parameter used for the modelling in the report that can be accessed through the report. (Ir. Dr. Sanjayan, 2019).

Table 2.6: Cost Breakdown for Investment Cost

Parameters	Model value (RM/W)
Module	1.65
Inverter	0.33
Structural material	
Miscellaneous (electrical cables, etc.)	0.72
Planning	
Installation work	2.91
Shipping and travel	
Permits and direct labour	
Project margin	
Sales & Services Tax (SST)	6%
Total	5.9466

Based on the table and values obtained, it, shows that the structural material is the mounted materials such as rack are included into the miscellaneous for the hardware cost. As for the software cost, the installation work price per watt are summaries with planning, shipping and labour cost included. Lastly, with the sales & service tax of 6%, the total price per watt (RM/W) for the solar photovoltaic is about RM 5.9466 for capacity > 10MW.

2.13 Summary

In summary, the literature review for this project has been performed where the literature review on the fixed tilt angle of the solar panel. Most of the reviewed papers utilize the ability of fixed tilt solar PV as compared to flexible tilt. One of the main contributions on the selection of fixed tilt PV is the cost of installation is affordable as compared to flexible tilt. Next, the formula for determine the cosine angle of the solar irradiation has been reviewed in 3D modelling. In addition, various papers on the actual on-site experiment by the authors were reviewed. The locations are from Malaysia, India, Turkey and China. The purpose for the on-site results is used to compare with the results estimated in the 3D modelling. Besides, the statistic results from the deforestation, interest rate, inflation rate, tariff rate are reviewed. These

results are important for estimation of the carbon dioxide avoidance and the annual income for the solar farm. Lastly, the annual report was reviewed for the investment cost of the solar farm in order to estimate the payback period, which can be obtained from the literature review. Therefore, with the appropriate literature review, the planning and application in constructing this project can be refer to CHAPTER 3 METHODOLOGY AND WORK PLAN.

CHAPTER 3

METHODOLOGY AND WORK PLAN

3.1 Introduction

In this section, the methodology and work plan on how the project being carried out is shown. In the first part, choose and select the desired solar sites for case study purposes. Next, the solar irradiation data will need to be downloaded from Solcast© manually for each solar sites, with a duration of one year (31st August 2019 to 1st September 2020), then the python programming will be able to start its operation. During the process, list of formula is used in order to determine the number of days, angle x, equation of time, solar time, declination angle, hour angle, altitude angle, zenith angle and azimuth angle. After the sun position in being determined for each of the datetime in the data, the determination of suitable tilt angle and orientation of the solar panel is able to calculate based on the formula derived. The method for determine if the tilt angle and orientation is optimum is based on the total maximum value of solar received in a year. Next, the carbon dioxide presence due to deforestation, carbon dioxide avoidance due to electricity generated from solar farm and net carbon dioxide of a location is performed to estimate the environmental impact of a project. Lastly, the investment cost, annual income and payback period of a solar project is estimated to undergo the economic impact of a project.

3.2 Metrological Data

In this project, the metrological data will obtain from Solcast ©, a solar irradiation data modelling company, which provides free access for various location of meteological data. The company provides various services, such as historical data, forecast data and real time data. (Dr. Nick, 2019). Solcast utilize the satellite images, perform machine learning, big data and computer vison to obtain the accuracy results of solar irradiation data with the latest technology. (Solcast, 2022). The accuracy table for the solcast data is shown in Table 3.1, where difference continent has different bias and RMSE.

Table 3.1: Accuracy of Solcast

Location	Bias	RMSE
North & South America	-2.38% to +1.38%	9.51% to 21.46%
Europe, Africa & West Asia	-7.06% to +6.93%	5.72% to 27.85%
East Asia & Oceania	-3.64% to +1.93%	9.41% to 21.56%

In this project, the metrological data chosen is Solcast[®] where this company provides not only a reliable and accurate solar irradiation data, but it does also not require an upfront payment to utilize the service provided by Solcast [®]. A comparison of the service provided from various solar data from websites such as:

Website	Remarks
https://joint-research-	Provides only historical data from 2005 to
centre.ec.europa.eu/pvgis-photovoltaic-	2015
geographical-information-system/pvgis-	
data-download/nsrdb-solar-radiation_en	
https://globalsolaratlas.info/map	Provides only the total amount of solar
	irradiation data.
https://solargis.com/products	Need to purchase the service before allowing
	to access the data.

3.3 Software

In this project, the only software that needed is Microsoft Excel and Python programming. The purpose of Microsoft Excel is to output the results generated by the Python programming, such as total maximum solar irradiation received for all types of angles. As for python programming, the optimization, modelling and comparison between various solar technologies is able to carry out. Python program is selected for this project as it is independence across platforms, such as windows, MacOS, Linux without any additional configuration. CFI (2015) stated that python language is able to perform various tasks such as data analysis, where it attracts community of developers, as it is easily accessible, simple and stable than other programming language such as C, C++, Matlab and others. In addition, Scarlett (2019), mention that Python not only flexible and also versatile, where python programming can be used for data analysis, machine learning, artificial intelligence (AI) and others. This creates an additional advantage where it

helps to save time and money of the developer for a quick testing on various platform as well as the overall process and efficiency increases.

3.4 Solar Sites

The data of yearly solar irradiance data obtained from Solcast \bigcirc with a duration from 1/9/2020 to 31/8/2021, which is 1 year duration. There are 17 solar sites are taken into considerations, with the objectives of which solar sites are suitable to perform solar analysis. The images of the solar sites' location is retrieved from Google Maps \bigcirc . Table 3.2 shows each of the solar site's name, states, coordinates and images of the sites.

Table 3.2: 17 Solar Sites for Modelling

Solar	Solar Site Name, States and Coordinate	Solar	Solar Site Name, States and Coordinate
Site		Site	
Numbe		Numbe	
r		r	
1	Tanjung Batu Hybrid Solar Power Plant Sandakan, Sabah	2	Comtec Solar International (m) Sdn Bhd Kuching, Sarawak
	5°48'01.8"N 118°09'29.2"E		1°31'10.6"N 110°23'50.0"E
	Transmission of the second sec		
3	Solar Power Plant Telok Melano, Sarawak Energy Berhad Lundu, Sarawak	4	Bukit Kayu Hitam Solarvest 12MWp Bukit Kayu Hitam, Kedah
	2°00'16 6"N 100°38'42 5"E		6°28'40 8"N 100°25'42 0"E
	2 00 10.0 N 109 30 42.3 E		0 20 40.0 N 100 23 42.0 E

			C de target
5	Pokok Sena Solar PV plant Jitra, Kedah	6	LSS PV 30MWac Kuala Muda Kedah Sungai Petani, Kedah
	6°10'51.3"N 100°28'21.0"E		5°39'25.3"N 100°34'21.2"E
	Construction of the second sec		Q 0 5993:331009370° 59976.57100934212° Q 0 5993:031009370° 0 10000270° Q 0 10000270° 0 10000270° Q 0 10000270° 0 10000270° Q 0 10000270° 0 0 Q 10000270° 0 0 10000270° Q 10000270° 0 0 10000270° Q 10000270° 0 0 10000270° Q 10000270° 0 10000270° 0 Q 10000270° 10000270° 0 10000270° Q 10000270° 10000270° 0 10000270° Q 10000270° 10000270° 10000270° 10000270° Q<
7	Elsoft Research Berhad	8	Taruc, Setapak
	Bayan Lepas, Pulau Pinang		Setapak, Wilayah Persekutuan Kuala Lumpur
	5°17'33.0"N 100°17'21.0"E		3°13'00.8"N 101°43'58.8"E

	Add to project	
9 Utar, Bandar Sungai Long, KB block roof top Bandai Sungai Long, Selangor	10	Utar, Kampar Campus Kampar, Perak
3.0394° N, 101.7941° E	a) a) a) a) a) a)	4°20'27.1"N 101°08'40.9"E
11Scatec Itramas solar 65MW Gurun Solar Power Pl Pendang, Kedah	ant 12	Scatec Itramas Solar 66MW Jasin Solar Power Plant Bemban, Melaka
5°51'46.6"N 100°32'20.2"E		2°17'56.7"N 102°21'16.0"E

	C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C		The second secon
13	Scatec Itramas Solar 66 MW Merchang Solar Power Plant Marang, Terengganu	14	Pekan Pahang Solar Farm Pekan, Pahang
	4°56'04.4"N 103°20'13.4"E		3°19'24.9"N 103°25'20.9"E
15	UITM Solar Park II (LSS2 Pasir Gudang) Masai, Johor	16	Pasir Mas Solar Farm Pasir Mas, Kelantan
	1°31'36.7"N 103°51'50.4"E		5°59'31.9"N 102°06'39.8"E



In addition to the Table above, the area for each of the solar site is also being estimated by using the "Google Maps Area Calculator Tools", retrieved from Daftlogic (2022). Table 3.3 shows the estimated area of the selected solar sites in Malaysia.

Solar	Name and	Solar Site	Area
Site	Coordinate		
Numbe			
r			
1	Sandakan, Sabah	Sadile-	$2043.99m^2$
		and the second sec	0.51 acres
	5°48'01.8"N		0.20
	118°09'29.2"E		hectares
			22001.28
	5.800498388299525,		feet ²
	118.1581109855393		
2	2	Steller	7255.00
2	Kuching, Sarawak	and the second	/355.08
	1°21'10 6"N		1112 1.82 aaros
	1 51 10.0 N 110°23'50 0"F		1.82 acres
	110 25 50.0 L	GENTHERIDE	0.74 hectares
	1 519615	a start and a start a sta	79169 45
	110 397216		feet ²
2	110.377210	Geogra	
3	Lundu, Sarawak		612.96 m ²
			0.15 acres
	2°00'16.6"N		0.06 h a stansa
	109°38'42.5"E	Description of the second	nectares
	2 00/611		0397.02 feet2
	2.004011,	*	icei
4	Bukit Kavu Hitam		175301 82
	Kedah		m ²
			43.32 acres
	6°28'40.8"N		17.53
	100005140 000		hectares
	100°25'42.0"E		1886933.0
			9 feet ²
	6.478000450954776,		
	100.4283292590189		

Table 3.3: Area of Each Solar Sites

5	Jitra, Kedah 6°10'51.3"N 100°28'21.0"E 6.18092040158725, 100.4725068913063	E de la del la d	238087.17 m ² 58.83 acres 23.81 hectares 2562749.0 3 feet ²
6	Sungai Petani, Kedah 5°39'25.3"N 100°34'21.2"E 5.657036399589651, 100.5725674803822 2		405248.59 m ² 100.14 acres 40.52 hectares 4362059.5 5 feet ²
7	Bayan Lepas, Pulau Pinang 5°17'33.0"N 100°17'21.0"E 5.292507846759102 5, 100.2891653269726 2		3089.49 m ² 0.76 acres 0.31 hectares 33254.96 feet ²
8	Setapak, Wilayah Persekutuan Kuala Lumpur 3°13'00.8"N 101°43'58.8"E 3.216889, 101.733000		119.63 m ² 0.03 acres 0.01 hectares 1287.68 feet ²
9	Bandai Sungai Long, Selangor 3.0394° N, 101.7941° E 3.039400, 101.794100	Development and the second and the s	193.16 m ² 0.05 acres 0.02 hectares 2079.10 feet ²
10	Kampar, Perak 4°20'27.1"N 101°08'40.9"E 4.340862, 101.144685	Series Carlos Ca	304.09 m ² 0.08 acres 0.03 hectares 3273.22 feet ²

11	Pendang, Kedah		674400.75
			m²
	5°51'46.6"N		166.65
	100°32'20.2"E		acres
			67.44
	5.862950268444186,		hectares
	100.5389354405749		7259189.2
	3		4 feet ²
12	Bemban, Melaka	Saulie-	291212.29
			m²
	2°17'56.7"N		0.29 km ²
	102°21'16.0"E		71.96 acres
			29.12
	2.299072,	tang tengan	hectares
	102.354431	Gogle Transmission of the second se	3134583.0
10		Statilized	1 feet ²
13	Marang, Terengganu		002380.10
	1056'04 4"N		162.69
	4 30 04.4 N 102°20'12 4"E		105.00
	105 20 15.4 E		66 24
	1 93/15/1/		bectares
	103 337056		7129800.0
	105.557050		3 feet^2
14	Pekan, Pahang	Satellite-	458379.53
			m ²
	3°19'24.9"N		113.27
	103°25'20.9"E		acres
			45.84
	3.323589,		hectares
	103.422471		4933956.2
			6 feet ²
15	Masai, Johor		380982.34
			m²
	1°31'36.7"N		94.14 acres
	103°51'50.4"E		38.10
		ANT INTO	hectares
	1.526846,		4100859.8
	103.864002		0 feet ²
16	Pasir Mas, Kelantan	Galder 7	48307.22
		mustanian	m²
	5°59'31.9"N		11.94 acres
	102°06'39.8"E		4.83
			hectares
	5.992184,	+	519974.62
	102.111054		teet ²

17	Kuala Dungun,	Satelice	298248.64
	Terengganu		m²
			73.70 acres
	4°38'55.8"N		29.82
	103°23'13.5"E		hectares
			3210321.6
	4.648842330141924,		4 feet ²
	103.3870802441601		
	7		

According to Carol (2020), stated that Google Earth update their database by obtaining sources through satellite images. However, these obtained data takes months to process, comparing between old data and new data, then finally only to be displayed as an update on the Google Earth Map. Based on the Table 3.3, each of the solar sites may appeared to be unfinished project, which shows only half of the solar farm is completed. For example, Kenyir Gunkul Solar Sdn Bhd, the Google Earth images shows that an empty land is selected to construct a solar farm in Kuala Dungun, Terengganu. Hence, this assuming that this solar site is in process, a study is being conducted on the impact of the deforestation for large solar farm in Malaysia.

3.5 List of Formulas

In this section, formulas will be listed out for including in the python programming, which will be suitable and easier for calculation, user is able to reconfigure the code if a newer formula is able to obtain a more accurate result.

3.5.1 Declination angle

$$\sin \delta = 0.39795 \cos[0.98563(N - 173)]$$

$$\delta = \sin^{-1}\{0.39795 \cos[0.98563(N - 173)]\}$$

According to Zhang (2016), Where N is the number of the day, and its starts with N = 1. For example, on 5 February 2021, meaning that the number of the day is:

3.5.2 Hour angle

$$\omega = 15 \left(t_s - 12 \right)$$

Where ts indicates the solar time in hours. Hour angle is presented in hour's form, where the hour angle is positive (+) during afternoon and negative (-) before noon (Akif, 2015).

3.5.3 Equation of time (EOT)

$$EOT = 0.258 \cos x - 7.416 \sin x - 3.648 \cos 2x - 9.228 \sin 2x$$

Where EOT is displayed in minutes form, in order to determine x,

$$x = \frac{360(N-1)}{365.242}$$

Where x is displayed in degree form.

3.5.4 Solar Time

$$LCT = t_s - \frac{EOT}{60} + LC + D$$

Where LCT is Local Clock Time, the time which is visible on the clock/watches, whereas LC can be determined by:

$$LC = \frac{local \ longitude - longitude \ of \ standard \ time \ zone \ meridiann}{15}$$

Where LC is displayed in degree form. For both longitude parameters, East is considered to be negative whereas West is considered to be positive. Since Malaysia does not have daylight saving, hence the solar time equation can be reorganized to be:

$$t_s = LCT + \frac{EOT}{60} - LC$$

3.5.5 Altitude angle

The altitude angle is the angle between the sunray and horizontal plane, where is also known as the angle of position of the sun from the horizontal plane.

 $\alpha = \sin^{-1}(\sin\delta\sin\varphi + \cos\delta\cos\omega\cos\varphi)$

Where δ is the declination angle, ϕ is the latitude of the location and ω is the hour angle calculated.

3.5.6 Azimuth angle

The azimuth angle is the angle measured starting from North up to the horizontal plane of the altitude angle. The measured angle starting from North with a clockwise direction (CW) is the positive value (+), whereas North with a counter-clockwise direction (CCW) is the negative value (-). In other words, if the measured angle started with North and move to the clockwise direction, where the East is 90°, South is 180°, West is 270°, and North can be either 0 or 360°. In order for the determination on which direction of the azimuth angle, an if-else statement is established:

1. When cos *A* > 0, which indicates that the angle is within the range of: North (N) -> East (E) and West (W) -> North (N)

$$\cos A = (\sin \delta \cos \varphi - \cos \delta \cos \omega \sin \varphi) / \cos \alpha > 0$$

$$A = \sin^{-1} \left[-\frac{\cos \delta \sin \omega}{\cos \alpha} \right]$$

2. When cos *A* < 0, which indicates that the angle is within the range of: East (E) -> South (S) and South (S) -> West (W)

$$\cos A = (\sin \delta \cos \varphi - \cos \delta \cos \omega \sin \varphi) / \cos \alpha < 0$$

$$A = 180^{\circ} - \sin^{-1} \left[-\frac{\cos \delta \sin \omega}{\cos \alpha} \right]$$

According to Baghzouz (2013), mentioned that at northern hemisphere, the azimuth angle of the sun is positive (A = +) in the morning, which the sun position rises from the East. In addition, at noon, the azimuth angle of the sun is zero (A = 0) whereas the negative azimuth angle (A = -) with the sun position sets to the West.

3.5.7 Zenith Angle

The zenith angle is the opposite of altitude angle, where the zenith angle is the angle between sunray and vertical plane, which the vertical is normal perpendicular to the horizontal plane.

$$\theta_z = 90 - a$$

Where θ_z is equals to 0 degree when the sun position is directly overhead, which is also during solar noon. Alternatively, the zenith angle is equals to 90 degrees before sunrise and during night time, where the sun is not present within the time period of the location. The range of the zenith angle is: 0 - 90 degrees.

3.5.8 Daily Solar Irradiation

On a single day, where the solar panel receive the sunlight on a particular spot, it is known as solar radiation (W/m2). However, if the solar panel receive the sunlight on a particular spot for an hour, it is known as solar irradiation (W/m2).

3.5.9 Annual Solar Irradiation

The annual solar irradiation is the sum of solar received by the solar panel for watt hour per meter square (Wh/m2) per day for a year. However, in order to determine the annual solar irradiation of the particular location, an average solar irradiation is taken into consideration with the formula:

Average Solar Irradiation $(Wh/m^2) = \frac{Sum \ of \ solar \ irradiation \ of \ the \ location \ for \ everyday}{The \ number \ of \ days \ of \ the \ year}$

3.5.10 Cosine effect

The solar panel is able to convert incoming sunlight into electrical energy for electrical application connected to the panel. When the solar panel is placed horizontally and the incoming sunray is shine directly to normal of the solar panel, the solar panel is able to receive the maximum amount of solar radiation. However, when the solar panel is remained horizontal and the sunray is not normal towards the solar panel, the incoming solar radiation received by the solar panel reduces as compared to the maximum solar radiation. This phenomenon is called cosine effect, where the received sunlight by the solar panel is dependent on the incoming sunrays.

Assume that when the sun is normal to the horizontal solar panel, with the solar radiation of 1000 W/m2:

The receive sunlight is calculated to be 1000 W/m2 under ideal condition, which is,

$$I_{o,h} = I_o \cos \theta_z$$

= (1000) * cos(0)
= 1000 W/m2

Where $I_{o,h}$ is the solar radiation received by the solar panel, I_o is the incoming sunlight towards the solar panel, θ_z is the zenith angle of the sun position.

Hence, in order to receive the maximum solar radiation on the solar panel, the solar panel is needed to be tilted as according to the sun position. For example, when the sun altitude angle is 20 degree, the zenith angle is calculated to be 90 - 20 = 70 degree. During this time, the horizontal solar panel can increase the tilted angle according to the zenith angle.

The comparison between receive sunlight of horizontal solar panel and tilted solar panel when the sun altitude angle is 20 degree under ideal condition is, horizontal solar panel is able to receive about 342.02 W/m2, when the sun altitude angle is 20 degree.

$$I_{o,h} = I_o \cos \theta_z$$

= (1000) * cos(70)
= 342.02 W/m2

Titled solar panel is able to receive about 1000 W/m2, when the solar panel is facing towards the normal of the sunray with the tilted angle of 70 degree.

$$I_{o,h} = I_o \cos \theta_z$$
$$= (1000) * \cos(0)$$
$$= 1000 W/m2$$

Under ideal condition, by the difference between horizontal and titled angle under different sun position, the solar radiation loss by the solar panel is approximately,

$$I_{loss} = I_{titled} - I_{horizontal}$$
$$= 1000 - 342.02$$
$$= 657.98 W/m2$$

Hence, the example shows that the important for solar panel for introducing the solar tracker. The purpose of the solar tracker is the track the position of the sun, shifted and tilted the solar panel towards the direction of the sun ray in order to capture the maximum solar radiation.

3.5.10.1 Cosine loss experienced by the solar panel

Baghzouz (2013) mentioned that cosine loss occurs due to the cosine effect event. The cosine effect is defined as the decrease in receiving area caused by the cosine angle formed between solar radiation and the normal line, as shown in Figure 3.1. In other words, cosine effect is the main cause for energy loss in solar energy on the PV panel.



Figure 3.1: Cosine Loss on Horizontal Plane (2D)

YES Manual Step Choose solar site: Latitude and longitude based on Google Map or and reference Insert the latitude and longitude value to Solcast @ website database Choose the parameters (Dni, Dhi...) that needed to be included in the CSV file Download the CSV file and move to the specific file location Additional Solar Sites for case study? NO End






Figure 3.2: Flowchart on Downloading Solcast Data.

The flowchart above shows the steps of the project in order to determine the optimum tilt angle and orientation of the solar panel. The programming language used for analysis is Python programming. The coding for this project can be inspected at Appendix. The flowchart can be divided into 2 sections, which are the manual steps and programming steps. As for the manual steps, first, a solar site or a location is chosen for analysis, with the value of latitude and longitude as shown in the Google map. The Solcast is able to detect and zoom in the chosen latitude and longitude. Once the latitude and longitude are being determined, the value can be input into the Solcast Database website for downloading the raw data of the solar received at the determined locations. The database provided any range of year, but for this project, we will focus from 31/8/2019 to 1/9/2021, which is equivalent to 1 year data. There are various types of data that can be obtained, where the important parameters provided by the raw data is Dhi, Dni, Ebh and Ghi. The data obtained from Solcast © will be used as the input data into the python programming in the form of CSV files. The downloaded CSV file is recommended to move to a specific file location for more organized structure. The steps are repeated if there are many solar sites needed to undergo case studies.

3.7 Determination of Number of Days, Angle X and Equation of Time (EOT)



Figure 3.3: Flowchart on the Formula of Days, Angle and EOT.

Once the manual steps are completed, the programming section can be initialized. The python program is able to read the CSV files from the specific file location and will assigned to a dataframe by the python, in order to carry out a series of separation and analysis. First, the datetime provided by the Solcast Data is in UTC time (Greenwich Time). For example, 0:00 at

Greenwich is equivalent to 8:00 in Malaysia. Therefore, the datetime from the data is needed to add 8 hours to localize with Malaysia Time. The date-time in the data can be classified into two categories, which are the start time and end time. The midpoint time can be determined through the start time and end time. The midpoint time will set as a label time of the DNI.

In the next section, the series of steps will be undergone to determine the sun position for each datatime of the data in the dataframe. First, the number of days will be determined by the label "n", the angle "x" in degree form can be determined where it is related with the number of days using the formula in python language:

Formula in Programming Code	Remarks		
df5['n'] = df4.dt.dayofyear	To determine the number of days		
	based on the datetime		
df5['x'] = ((360*(df5['n']-1))/365.242)*(m.pi/180)	To determine the angle x of the		
	number of day		

Next, with the number of days and angle x in degree form, the value can be substitude into the other formula, which is the Equation of Time (EOT) in minutes form as well as converting the EOT into hours for easier calculation. If the EOT is negative, meaning that the Solar Time is delayed by the number of EOT minutes as compared to Local Time, otherwise, if positive EOT, solar time is ahead of Local Time.

Formula in Programming Code	Remarks
df5['eot'] = (0.258*np.cos(df5['x']) -	To determine the equation of time (EOT) in
7.416*np.sin(df5['x']) -	minutes.
3.648*np.cos(2*df5['x']) -	
9.228*np.sin(2*df5['x']))/60	
df5['eot'] = pd.to_timedelta(df5['eot'],	To convert the EOT into hours
unit='h')	

Before solar time is determine for each datetime provided by the data, the standard longitude, local longitude, standard latitude and local latitude is determined by using the formula. The local latitude and local longitude can be extracted from the filename of the CSV. For example, the sign of longitude is positive (+) if East, negative (-) if West. The sign of latitude is positive (+) if North, negative (-) if South.

Formula in Programming Code	Remarks		
	To determine standard longitude of the site.		
Lst = 8*15	For example, the distance time difference		
LstEW = 'E'	between Greenwich and Malaysia is 8 hours,		
	and each longitude is 15 degrees, the		
if LstEW == 'E':	standard longitude can be calculated by		
$Lst = Lst^{*}(1)$	multiplication.		
elif LstEW == 'W':			
$Lst = Lst^{*}(-1)$	If the longitude is East, positive sign.		
	If the longitude is West, negative sign.		
	The actual/local longitude of the site is		
Loc = float(filename.split('_')[1])	extracted from the filename. The LocNS is		
LocEW = 'E'	preset as 'E' = East.		
if LocEW == 'E':	If the longitude is East, positive sign.		
$Loc = Loc^*(1)$	If the longitude is West, negative sign.		
elif LocEW == 'W':			
$Loc = Loc^{*}(-1)$			
	The actual/local latitude of the site is		
Lat = float(filename.split('_')[0])	extracted from the filename. The LatEW is		
LatNS = 'N'	preset as 'E' = East.		
if LatNS == 'N':	If the longitude is East, positive sign.		
$Lat = Lat^{*}(1)$	If the longitude is West, negative sign.		
elif LatNS == 'S':			
$Lat = Lat^{*}(-1)$			

With the given standard longitude and local longitude, the solar time for each datetime can be determined by the formula. The differences between local longitude and standard longitude will be converted into hours for easier calculation.

Formula in Programming Code	Remarks
$df5['solar_datetime'] = df4 + df5['eot'] -$	Df4 = dataframe containing the midpoint of
timedelta(hours = $(Loc - Lst)/15$)	start time and end time (local clock time)
	Df5['EOT"] = dataframe with the column
	"EOT" in hours.
	Loc = local longitude
	Lst = standard longitude

3.8 Determine Sun Position



Figure 3.4: Flowchart on Determine Sun Position

Next, the sun position for each datetime in the data can be determine with the parameters of number of days, decline angle, hour_angle, altitude angle, zenith angle, and azimuth angle.

Formula in Programming Code	Remarks
df5['decline_angle'] =	To determine the declination angle
np.arcsin(0.39795*np.cos(0.98563*(df5['n'	for each datetime based on the solar
] - 173)*(m.pi/180)))*(180/m.pi)	time
df5['hour_angle'] =	To determine the hour angle for each
15*((df5.solar_datetime.dt.hour +	date time based on the solar time
df5.solar_datetime.dt.minute/60 +	
df5.solar_datetime.dt.second/3600)-12)	
df5['altitude_angle'] =	To determine the altitude angle for
np.arcsin(np.sin(df5['decline_angle']*(m.pi	each datetime based on the solar time.
/180))	Lat = local latitude
np.sin(Lat(m.pi/180))	
+	
np.cos(df5['decline_angle']*(m.pi/180))	
np.cos(df5['hour_angle'](m.pi/180))	
np.cos(Lat(m.pi/180)))*(180/m.pi)	
df5['altitude_angle'].values[df5['altitude_an	If the altitude angle is lesser than
gle'].values < 0] = 0.0	zero, meaning that the sun is no
	longer presence at the location (night
	time), therefore will assign as zero.
df5['zenith_angle'] = 90 -	To determine the zenith angle of the
df5['altitude_angle']	sun.
df5['cosA'] =	A predetermination of the value of
(np.sin(df5['decline_angle']*(m.pi/180))*n	CosA which is the cosine of azimuth
p.cos(Lat*(m.pi/180))	angle
-	
np.cos(df5['decline_angle']*(m.pi/180))*np	

.cos(df5['hour_angle']*(m.pi/180))*np.sin(
$Lat*(m.pi/180)))/(np.cos(df5['altitude_angl$			
e']*(m.pi/180)))			
df5.loc[df5['cosA'] > 0, 'Azimuth'] =	If CosA is more than 0, this formula		
np.arcsin((-	is chosen to determine the azimuth		
np.cos(df5['decline_angle']*(m.pi/180))	angle.		
np.sin(df5['hour_angle'](m.pi/180)))			
/(np.cos(df5['altitude_angle']*(m.pi/180))))			
*(180/m.pi)			
df5.loc[df5['cosA'] < 0, 'Azimuth'] = 180 -	If CosA is less than 0, this formula is		
np.arcsin((-	chosen to determine the azimuth		
np.cos(df5['decline_angle']*(m.pi/180))	angle.		
np.sin(df5['hour_angle'](m.pi/180)))			
/(np.cos(df5['altitude_angle']*(m.pi/180))))			
*(180/m.pi)			

3.9 Determine Optimum Tilt and Orientation Angle for Solar Panel



Figure 3.5: Flowchart on the Summation of Total Solar Irradiation on a Given Angle.

Once the sun position of the location is calculated, the determination for the suitability for the tilt angle and orientation of solar panel is carried out. The summary for determining the tilt angle and orientation of the solar panel is by looping method. For example, given the setting of solar panel with the tilted angle of 1 degree, the orientation of solar panel is remained at 0 degree. With the selected tilt angle and orientation angle, the value will be substitute into the formula to determine the incident angle between solar panel and the sun. The solar received on the surface of the panel can be determined by the multiplication of the solar received with the incident angle.

Formula in Programming Code	Remarks		
cosiafc =	To determine the incident angle		
np.cos((za)*(rd))*np.cos((beta)*(rd)) +	between the solar panel and the sun at		
np.sin((za)*(rd))*np.sin((beta)*(rd))*np.co	the given tilt angle and orientation		
s(((az)-(sa))*(rd))	angle for each datetime		

	Beta: the tilt angle
	Sa: the orientation angle
solar_received = dni*cosiafc	To determine the solar received on
	the surface of the solar panel with tilt
	and oriented panel due to cosine
	effect for each datetime
solar_received = solar_received + dhi	After the direct solar irradiation with
	cosine effect being included, the
	diffuse solar irradiation is added to
	obtained the total solar irradiation on
	the surface of the PV panel.
d[beta][sa] = solar_received.sum()	After solar received on the solar panel
	for each datetime is determined, the
	data will be sum up, then assigned to
	a table with the value of summation
	of solar received throughout the year.

The solar collected on the surface of the solar panel is calculated for the whole year and will be sum up as the total solar received on the surface of the solar panel based on the setting given. The steps are repeated for each orientation and tilt angle. The range of the tilt angle is set from 0 to 90 degree, where 0 degree indicates the solar panel lies flat on the horizontal surface of the ground, whereas 90 degree indicates the solar panel is vertical or perpendicular to the surface of the ground. The range of the orientation of the solar panel is from 0 degree to 360 degree. At 0-degree, 90-degree, 180 degree and 270 degrees, the solar panel at the northern hemisphere is facing towards North, East, South and West respectively as shown in Figure 3.6.



Figure 3.6: Solar Panel Facing Direction Angle

Once the table with tilt angle and orientation angle is filled up with the total sum maximum solar received, the selection of optimum tilt angle and orientation angle is being carried out. The method for determination is by choosing the highest total sum maximum solar received with the given tilt angle and orientation angle as shown in the Figure 3.7. The obtained value of the table with tilt and orientation angle will be plotted on a graph.



Figure 3.7: Flowchart on Choosing the Maximum Total Solar Irradiation



3.10 Amount of Energy Generation in a Year

Figure 3.8: Flowchart on Calculation of Energy Output with efficienty (kWh/m2)

Figure 3.8 shows the flow chart on estimating the amount of energy generated per year. According to the formula derived from Chapter 2, it provides an ideal estimation on the power output of the solar panels obtained in a year at a particular location. For example, assume the solar sites in Bukit Kayu Hitam, with the geographic coordinate of 6.478000450954776N, 100.4283292590189E, the total direct solar irradiation obtained based on the optimum tilt angle and azimuth angle is 942217.92 Wh/m2. The value of the efficiency of the solar panel used is 16.0%, where the FirstSolar© 115W solar panel will be used as a reference. By substituting into the equation, the estimated power output for a solar panel at the location is:

 $P_{output} = Efficiency * total solar irradiation a year$ = 0.16 * 942217.92 Wh/m2= 150754.87 Wh/m2= 150.75 kWh/m2

The power output of a solar panel at Bukit Kayu Hitam in a year is estimated to be $150.75 \ kWh/m2$. The power output of the solar panel is dependent on the location, total area size of solar panel, efficiency and the types of solar panel brands.

3.11 Presence of Carbon Dioxide due to Absent of Forest



Figure 3.9: Flowchart on estimating the presence of carbon dioxide due to deforestation (tCO2/m2)

Figure 3.9 shows the flow chart on estimating the presence of carbon dioxide due to absent of forest in per meter square. According to the formula derived from Chapter 2, it shows that based on a statistic forest in Malaysia, 1 ha of natural forest is equivalent to 698.36 t of CO2. This equation also means that for every 1 ha of natural forest is being removed, 698.36t of CO2 is present towards the surroundings due to the absent of these trees. For example, the solar site in Bukit Kayu Hitam have an area of 17.53 hectares, by substituting into the equation:

1 ha of natural forest = 698.36t CO2 17.53 ha of natural forest = 698.36 * 17.53 tCO2 17.53 ha of natural forest = **12242**.**2508t** CO2

Based on the calculation above, 17.53 ha of natural forest being removed will contribute to 12242.2508t of CO2 being present to the surrounding. 17.53 ha is approximately 175301.82m2. Hence, by substituting the parameters into the equation, 1 meter square of a natural forest being removed is approximately 0.069835274t CO2 is present towards the surrounding.

17.53ha of natural forest = 175301.82m2 = 12242.2508t CO2 $1m2 = \frac{12242.2508t CO2}{175301.82}$ 1m2 = 0.069835274t CO2CO2 increased from deforestation = 0.069835274t CO2/m2

3.12 Calculation of CO2 avoidance



Figure 3.10: Flowchart on Calculation of CO2 Avoidance.

Figure 3.10 shows the flow chart on the calculation of CO2 avoidance when solar farm is in operation. According to the formula in Chapter 2, the important parameters required for the avoidance of carbon dioxide is the generated electricity (kWh) and the baseline factor of CO2 avoidance (kg/kwh). According to the baseline standard by SEDA Malaysia, by selecting the latest year, the CO2 avoidance factor is 0.639 tCO2/MWh in Peninsular, whereas 0.512 tCO2/MWh in Sabah, Wilayah Persekutuan, Labuan, whereas 0.364 tCO2/MWh in Sarawak based on SEDA (2016) and MGTC (2017).

Location	CO2 avoidance factor (tCO2/MWh)
Peninsular Malaysia	0.639
Sabah, Wilayah Persekutuan, Labuan	0.512
Sarawak	0.364

Table 3.4: CO2 Avoidance Factor for Different Region

For example, the CO2 avoidance in Bukit Kayu Hitam, which is situated in Peninsular Malaysia,

Avoided CO2 in tCO2/m2 = Generated Electricity in kWh x factor for CO2 avoidance in kg/kWh = $150.75 \ kWh/m2 \ x \ 0.639tCO2/MWh$ = $0.151 \ MWh/m2 \ x \ 0.639tCO2/MWh$ = $0.096 \ tCO2/m2$

Hence, in order to determine the Net Carbon Dioxide in Bukit Kayu Hitam for example, by substituting the value of CO2 presence from deforestation and CO2 Avoided,

Net Carbon Dioxide = $CO2 \ Emission - CO2 \ Avoided$ = 0.069835274 tCO2/m² - 0.096 tCO2/m² = -0.0265 tCO2/m2

In summary, for Bukit Kayu Hitam, the net carbon dioxide in a year is approximately -0.0265 tCO2/m2, the negative sign of the value indicates that the amount of carbon dioxide present in the surrounding due to the deforestation is able to payback by installation of solar panels within a year. If the sign of the value is positive, meaning that within a year, the carbon dioxide avoided by solar panel installation are unable to cover up the carbon dioxide emission due to deforestation.

3.13 Economic Impact



Figure 3.11: Flowchart on Calculation of Annual Income with Various Parameter Given

Figure 3.11 shows the flow chart to estimate the annual income of the solar farm, with energy output and tariff rate. Take the case study in Bukit Kayu Hitam, where the energy output in a year is $150.75 \ kWh/m2$. Table 3.5(a), 3.5(b), 3.5(c) shows the investment cost, total energy output, total solar panels, total solar panel area respectively in order to estimate the payback period of the solar farm in Bukit Kayu Hitam.

Energy	Size of a		Total area		Total Income
Chiefgy	solar	Number	of solar	Total Energy	(RM)
	module	of Pieces	panel	Output (kwh)	Tariff =
(KWh/m2)	used (m2)		(m2)		RM0.395/kwh
150.75	1.2 *0.6 = 0.72	105000	75600	11397067.92	4,501,841.83

Table 3.5(a): Working Step of Estimating the Annual Income of Solar Farm.

Table 3.5(b): Working Step of Calculation Total Capacity of Solar Farm.

Rated power solar panel used (W)	Total rated power solar panel (W)
115	115*105000 = 12075000

Table 3.5(c): Working Step of Calculation of Investment Cost of Solar Farm.

Donomotons	Model value	Watt (W)	Total value
Parameters	(RM/W)	wall (w)	(RM)
Module	1.65	12,075,000	19,923,750
Inverter	0.33	12,075,000	3,984,750
Structural material			
Miscellaneous (electrical	0.72	12 075 000	8 604 000
cables, etc.)	0.72	12,075,000	0,094,000
Planning			
Installation work	2.91	12,075,000	35,138,250
Shipping and travel			
Permits and direct labor			
Project margin			
Total without Tax			67,740,750
Sales & Services Tax (SST)	6%		4,064,445
Total	5.9466		71,805,195

Therefore, the payback period of Bukit Kayu Hitam can be estimated as:

$$n_{pay} = -\frac{In[1 - S_{total}i'/P_{ann}]}{In(1+i')}$$

Where $i' = \frac{1+i}{1+j} - 1$, interest rate, i = 1.75%, inflation rate, j = 2.3%

$$\begin{split} S_{total} &= Total \ Investment \ Cost \\ P_{ann} &= Annual \ cost \ saving \\ &i' &= \frac{1+i}{1+j} - 1 \\ &= \frac{1+0.0175}{1+0.023} - 1 \\ &= -0.0054 \\ n_{pay} &= -\frac{In\left[1 - \frac{S_{total}*i'}{P_{ann}}\right]}{In(1+i')} \\ &= -\frac{In\left[1 - \frac{(71,805,195)(-0.0054)}{4,501,841.83}\right]}{In(1-0.0054)} \end{split}$$

$$= 15.259 \ years$$

Based on the estimation of Bukit Kayu Hitam, with the annual income of RM 4501841.83, while having an initial investment cost of about RM 71,805,195, the project needed 15.26 years in order to return the investment cost. Once the project reaches the operation more than 15.26 years, the project is able to generate profit.

3.14 Summary

In summary, no hardware is needed in this project. As for software, the Python library is used for the comprehensive modelling, for determining the solar time, sun position, maximum solar received for each datetime based on the tilt and orientation angle generated. Python programming is able to undergo complex calculation and able to generate the desired parameters, such as solar time, sun position, maximum solar received, optimum tilt and orientation angle for a year (2019 to 2020) within a one-day period. In addition, in terms of cost, this project has the lowest investment, however, it able to produce a reliable yet inexpensive outcome, while able to estimate the environmental impact and economic impact of the case study solar sites. Fortunately, the project is able to run without errors. With the necessary libraries and software, the design and implementation for the project can undergo comprehensive modelling of solar photovoltaic technologies. The compilation of GHI for each solar site solar site and its maximum total solar received a year. Next, the presence of carbon dioxide due to deforestation, carbon dioxide avoidance and the net carbon

dioxide will be shown in environmental section. Lastly, the investment, annual income, payback period will be estimated and tabulated respectively in Chapter 4: RESULTS AND DISCUSSION.

CHAPTER 4

RESULTS AND DISCUSSIONS

4.1 Introduction

In this section, the compilation of GHI, number ranking, optimum tilt angle and orientation for each solar site and its maximum total solar received a year respectively will be generated and tabulated in graph. As for compilation of GHI, each of the solar sites will have its solar radiation data, and the graph will display the total solar radiation of each month for a year, with the annually average peak hour and solar irradiation. Once the compilation is completed, the ranking of the solar sites is able to carry out. The higher the total GHI, the higher the ranking for the solar sites. Next, each of the solar site's data will be used for undergoing the determination of optimum tilt angle and orientation for solar panel in order to receive maximum solar irradiation. In addition, the environmental impact of the case study solar farm will be performed as well as the economic impact of the case study, where investment cost, annual income and payback period will be estimated with the report and statistic obtained.

4.2 Compilation of GHI for Each Solar Sites

The yearly solar irradiance data obtained from Solcast for each of the solar sites is being tabulated in the Table 4.1. There are 17 solar sites in total, where the solar sites are located and recognized in each region in Malaysia. The annual average solar irradiation shows that the daily average solar received on the particular solar sites, wherelse, the annual average peak sun hours is just the value of daily average solar received divided by 1000 kWh/m^2, meaning that the particular solar sites will have how many hours of sunshine throughout the day in average.

Table 4.1: GHI for Each Solar Sites

	Solar Site and Coordinate	GHI	Annual Daily average Solar Irradiation (kWh/m^2) ($\sum GHI$)	Annual Daily average Peak Sun Hours (PSH) (h)
1	Tanjung Batu Hybrid Solar Power Plant 5°48'01.8"N 118°09'29.2"E	7000 6000 4000 3000 2000 0 0 2020-09 2020-11 2021-03 2021-05 2021-07 2021-09 solar_datetime	5.349270491803279	5.349270491803276
2	Comtec Solar International (m) Sdn Bhd 1°31'10.6"N 110°23'50.0"E	7000 6000 4000 3000 0 2020-09 2020-11 2021-03 2021-05 2021-07 2021-09 solar_datetime	4.965588555858311	4.9655885558583135











4.3 Ranking of Solar Sites

Based on the tabulated Annual average GHI and Peak Sun Hours, the ranking for each solar sites is also being sorted in descending order, where the highest annual average GHI will be the first and lowest annual average GHI will be the last ranking.

According to the sorted ranking based on the annual average GHI for each solar sites, it shows that the **Top 3** annual average GHI among the 17 chosen solar sites are Tanjung Batu Hybrid Solar Power Plant, Pokok Sena Solar PV Plant and LSS PV 30MWac Kuala Muda Kedah, with the annual average GHI of 5320.19837 Wh/m2, 5181.217391 Wh/m2 and 5145.619565 Wh/m2 respectively.

In addition, the **Last 3** annual average GHI among the 17 chosen solar sites are Taruc, Setapak, Solar Power Plant Telok Melano, Sarawak Energy Berhad and UITM Solar Park II (LSS2 Pasir Gudang), with the annual average GHI of 4884.521739 Wh/m2, 4847.396739 Wh/m2 and 4691.486413 Wh/m2 respectively.

Rating_Ranking	Solar Site Name	Coordinate	Annual Average GHI (Wh/m2)
1	Tanjung Batu Hybrid Solar Power Plant	5.800498388299525, 118.15811098553932	5320.19837
2	Pokok Sena Solar PV Plant	6.18092040158725, 100.4725068913063	5181.217391
3	LSS PV 30MWac Kuala Muda Kedah	5.657036399589651, 100.57256748038222	5145.619565
4	Pekan Pahang Solar Farm	3.323589, 103.422471	5125.663043
5	Elsoft Research Berhad	5.2925078467591025, 100.28916532697262	5111.902174
6	Scatec solar 65MW Gurun Solar Power Plant	5.862950268444186, 100.53893544057493	5105.494565
7	Bukit Kayu Hitam Solarvest	6.478000450954776, 100.4283292590189	5067.320652
8	Pasir Mas Solar Farm	5.992184, 102.111054	5058.369565
9	Scatec Solar 66MW Merchang Solar Power Plant	4.934544, 103.337056	5038.288043

Table 4.2: Ranking of Each Solar Site based on GHI

10	Scatec Solar 66MW Jasin Solar Power Plant	2.299072, 102.354431	4968.570652
11	Kenyir Gunkul Solar Sdn Bhd	4.648842330141924, 103.38708024416017	4962.75
12	Utar Bandar Sungai Long, KB block roof top	3.0394, 101.7941	4957.752717
13	Comtec Solar International (m) Sdn Bhd	1.519615, 110.397216	4952.095109
14	Utar, Kampar Campus	4.340862, 101.144685	4944.483696
15	Taruc, Setapak	3.216889, 101.733	4884.521739
16	Solar Power Plant Telok Melano, Sarawak Energy Berhad	2.004611, 109.645139	4847.396739
17	UITM Solar Park II (LSS2 Pasir Gudang)	1.526846, 103.864002	4691.486413

4.4 Maximum Total Solar Irradiation (Wh/m2) with Optimum Tilt and Orientation Angle

In this section, the maximum total solar irradiation (Wh/m2) for a year and the suitable tilt angle and orientation angle for the specific location of the solar sites. Table 4.3 below shows the compilation of each solar sites' total solar irradiation, tilt angle and orientation angle of the solar panel. The higher the total solar, the tilt angle and orientation angle is chosen to be the suitable angle for the solar panel in order to achieve a higher output. The graph also indicates that for each tilt angle and orientation angle, the maximum total solar irradiation is being plotted out, hence the tilt angle is range from 0 to 90 degrees, whereas the orientation angle ranges from 0 to 360 degrees.

Location	Graph	Remarks
Comtec Solar International (m) Sdn Bhd	stall Paintons tobe intellicion a biosed a prec (at/one) for each obsection and around a found paral	14.8-degree elevation angle
	I A CONTROL TOTAL	276.0 azimuth angle
		865069.12 Wh/m2
UITM Solar Park II (LSS2 Pasir Gudang)	hald Haimum Yolar institution at linesed a year (10()mt) in such absorbin and accruth of value parent	19.7-degree elevation angle
	Las an Table 1000	266.1 azimuth angle
		723861.167 Wh/m2

Table 4.3: The Optimum Tilt and Orientation Angle for Each Solar Sites

Solar Power Plant Telok Melano, Sarawak Energy Berhad	table Proteinum Solar Interfacion er linearie y per (20(m2) in such about in and are set in all and parel	18.3-degree elevation angle.
	www.mcTetteripDates	277.3 azimuth angle
		834412.96 Wh/m2
	T	
	and the second sec	
Scatec Itramas Solar 66MW Jasin Solar Power Plant	"Natel Maximum Solar Intellation achieved a year "DB/m2] for each elevators and gameth of solar gaved	24.9-degree elevation angle.
	Las and Antonio Martin	264.9 azimuth angle
		819103.23 Wh/m2
Utar Bandar Sungai Long, KB block roof top	Table Hammun Solar Intelligities activated is your (Ndyrol) for each elevation and an rach of valor parel	20.7-degree elevation angle.
	CONTRACTOR OF CONTRACTOR	263.3 azimuth angle
	Source State Sta	817198.42 Wh/m2
	the second state of the se	
	and a second fight	

Title Hasimum Solar Insolation actioned a year ((Myhn)) for each elevation and across the for take panel	21.4-degree elevation angle.
CALL OF A CALL CONTROL OF A CALL	260.6 azimuth angle
	825633.59 Wh/m2
Total Hasimum Solar Installation activated 4 year (Ndynt) for each devotion and accords of solar parent	32.4-degree elevation angle.
In a star water with	270.7 azimuth angle
	965110.94 Wh/m2
Total Maximum Solar Installation activated 4 year (NMyrc1) for each observation and az much of solar parent	23.8-degree elevation angle.
THAN A CARTER PRAY	261.9 azimuth angle
	895157.73 Wh/m2
	<text></text>

Scatec Itramas Solar 66 MW Merchang Solar Power Plant		29 9-degree elevation angle
Source Internal Solar 00 111 (Friendlung Solar I Gwer I land	Table Financian Scale makation acclosured a year (Myhord) for each shoredon and accrede of safer panel	269.2 animuth angle
		268.3 azimuth angle
		920331.52 Wh/m2
	and the second se	
Kanvin Cuntul Salar Sdn Dhd		20.9 degree elevation angle
Kenyir Gunkui Solar San Bha	Teld Plasmum State tradiction actioned a year (Nb)(r3) for each alreaders and acrossly of other panel	50.8-degree elevation angle.
	A CALL AND THE REAL PROPERTY OF	268.8 azimuth angle
		865738.97 Wh/m2
	and the second sec	
	9 g 1 F	
Pasir Mas Solar Farm	Total Maximum Solar Instalation actives of a year (NMyH1) for each elevation and az much of talls panel	27.8-degree elevation angle.
	27.507 V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V	266.6 azimuth angle
		934188.47 Wh/m2
	and the second sec	
	· • · · ·	

LCC DV 20MWas Kusla Muda Kadah	<u> </u>	26.0 de arres elevetion en ele
LSS PV 301VI wać Kuala Muda Kedan	Total Hastmann Solar Insulation actioned a year (bdpss) for each devices and across hist relate panel	26.0-degree elevation angle.
	Halan Rafe	256.4 azimuth angle
		975184 08 Wh/m2
		<i>77310</i> 4.00 Willin2
	42 8	
	· · ·	
	and a second from the second sec	
Taniung Datu Ukhaid Salar Dawar Dlant		2.2 decrees alerentian angle
Tanjung Batu Hyonu Solar Power Plant	Still illusionum State Insulation actioned a year (NMprc)) for each elevation and an each of other panel	2.5-degree elevation angle.
	1 2 277 7 (Senart (2013)	177.7 azimuth angle
	1 3 South	1098835.07 Wh/m2
	163 Frank	
	50 189	
	a no a second de la constante de	
Scatec Itramas solar 65MW Gurun Solar Power Plant	That Maximum Star Installation actions of your (NMV-3) for each skottim and az noch af other parel	28.5-degree elevation angle.
		257.6 azimuth angle
		982932.94 Wh/m2
	45 g 46 s	
	and a second particular	

Flooft Descerch Barbad		22.0 degree elevation angle
Eison Research Denhad	Table Missimum Galar Introduction actioned a year (NMpHO) for each elevation and air much of table parent	52.9-degree elevation angle.
	Construction of the second sec	261.1 azimuth angle
	A Building a second sec	1001867.3 Wh/m2
Pokok Sena Solar PV plant	Stat Hammun Galar Installator schward y ywr (Nevro)) fer ach dwedan sod ar nu'r f ei dar gand	29.0-degree elevation angle.
	Water and a second s	256.1 azimuth angle
	Start and Start	1020978.37 Wh/m2
Bukit Kayu Hitam Solarvest	ted frainin tide tradicion alticat y per (2000) to with death and a cert to take period	28.0-degree elevation angle.
	SI C MALTON RED	256.1 azimuth angle
		942217.92 Wh/m2

4.5 Comparison with On-site results

In this section, the comparison with the simulated results and on-site results is necessary, it is because to determine whether the simulation model is safe and reliable for future purposes. In addition, the big local company firm for solar energy such as Scatec Itramas ©, Gunkul © and others, unable to provide and disclose the information such as optimum tilt angle, optimum azimuth angle, types of solar panel used. Due to these various limitations, the thesis paper published by various researchers, who undergo physical experiment on-site, set up solar panel and record the results will be used as a comparison reference for this model. Fortunately, some renown local company, which are SolarVest© and Scatec Itramas © willing to enclose the details (Optimum tilt angle, azimuth angle, types of solar panel brand used). Based on the literature review, there are some steps that needed to be compared with, in order to stat the accuracy of this program.

- 1. If the thesis paper provided optimum tilt angle, azimuth angle and total solar irradiation, we will first fix the tilt angle and azimuth angle based on the researcher, then compare the difference between total solar irradiation by the researcher with the simulation.
- 2. If the thesis paper did not provide the azimuth angle and total solar irradiation, the program will run 0 to 90 degrees for tilt angle and 0 to 360 degrees for azimuth angle.
- 3. If the thesis paper provides the optimum tilt angle and azimuth angle, the program will also run 0 to 90 degrees for tilt angle and 0 to 360 degrees for azimuth angle.
- 4. If the thesis paper provides the optimum tilt angle and total solar irradiation, the program will still run 0 to 90 degree and 0 to 360 degrees.
- 5. Special Case: If the Solar Photovoltaic Company kindly provided the optimum tilt angle and azimuth angle, the program would fix the azimuth angle as the reference and determine the tilt angle.

Table 4.4 and 4.5 show the comparison of the simulation and actual results provided by the researchers and local company.

Location	Graph	Simulation
		Results
Padang	Titled Maximum faiter threakables as based is gard (blocks) for each devotes and as much of safe gard	-10-degree tilt
Besar, Perlis		angle.
		160 orientation
		angles.
		49768.37 Wh/m2
	lines -	
Ilorin		28.4 degree tilt
Nigorio	bid reasons the tradicity about your (March) for each devices on all area's of a low of a sent	20.4-degree th
Nigeria	a contraction of the second seco	aligie.
		290.9 azimuun
		angle of solar
	the second se	panel.
		29931.94 wh/m2
Panjab		38.1-degree tilt
University		angle.
Chandigarh,		206.4 orientation
India		angle of solar
		panel.
		1065090.60
		Wh/m2
Aligarh city,	Tabel Maximum Safer Intelligence advected a year 185/nr2) for each elevations and annulis of solar genet	29.3-degree tilt
India		angle.
		197.8 azimuth
		angle of solar
		panel.
		4037081.3
		Wh/m2

Table 4.4: Simulation Results for Each Literature Review
New Dehli,	The Maximum Sale tradition as based is part (NAV-0) for each shorten and army's of take panel	31.3-degree tilt
India		angle.
		199.8 azimuth
		angle.
	· · · · ·	4006374.31
	trans a strange of the	Wh/m2
Bilecik Seyh	Table Maximum Solic Instabilities as based is part (MMHV) for each shortfore and an each of other panel	24.9-degree tilt
Edebalı	La san 2005 2000	angle.
University		247.4 azimuth
Engineering		angle.
Faculty,	the second se	468122.73
Turkey		Wh/m2
Chennai,	Star Maximum Gair Instalation as lowed a year (NNN-2) for each devotes and arms/1 of usin yeard	18.3-degree tilt
India	and a function	angle.
		206.7 azimuth
	and a second sec	angle.
		949149 Wh/m2
	and the second sec	
Beijing,	Table Minimum Solar Insolution as Issued a year (Miyes) for each detection and acros) of other panel	40.5-degree tilt
China		angle.
		186.4 azimuth
		angle.
	and the second se	1072875.52
		Wh/m2
Bukit Kayu	Total Maximum Solid Introduction Achieved a year (RMun2) for each investors and admitted a later gared	7.3-degree tilt
Hitam,	I S S I REPORT PARA	angle.
SolarVest©,		180.0 azimuth
Malaysia		angle.
	a n n n n n n n n n n n n n n n n n n n	838748.69
	A detail of the second se	Wh/m2

Scatec Itramas solar 65MW Gurun Solar Power Plant, Pendang, Kedah	to the fractions state invalues a pare 190/col (b) each detection and arough of the parel	 6.7-degree tilt angle. 180 azimuth angles. 869669.16 Wh/m2
Scatec Itramas Solar 66 MW Merchang Solar Power Plant, Marang, Terrenganu	the Praiman Side traditional space (New) for each density and grants that the paral	1 degree tilt angle. 180 azimuth angles. 797983.63 Wh/m2
Scatec Itramas Solar 66MW Jasin Solar Power Plant, Bemban, Melaka	Like Protonom Color Protonom	 2.4-degree tilt angle. 180 azimuth angles. 743376 Wh/m2

Location	Geographic	On-site	On-site	Total	Simulation	Simulation	Simulation Total	Remarks
		Tilt	Azimuth	Solar	Tilt angle	Azimuth	Solar Irradiation	
		angle	angle	Irradiation		Angle		
Padang	6.649444N,	-10	South	43.23 -	-10.0	160	48.95 kWh/m2	The simulated
Besar, Perlis	100.256389E		20-	43.92	degree	azimuth		total solar
			degree	kwh/m2		angles.		irradiation on the
			East.					given tilt angle
			(160					and azimuth angle
			degree					will have a range
			from					of 5.03 to 5.72
			North)					difference.
								Therefore, the
								solar irradiation
								from Solcast ©
								and formula can
								be accepted.

Table 4.5: Summary and Comparison with Simulation and On-site Results

Ilorin,	8.5373N, 4.5444E	22	Facing	-	28.4-	296.9	29931.94 Wh/m2	The simulation
Nigeria		degrees	south		degree tilt	azimuth		results unable to
					angle.	angle.		obtain similar site
								results.
								Therefore, it is
								rejected.
Panjab	30.748098N,	30	-	-	38.1-	206.4	1065090.6 Wh/m2	By comparing, it
University	76.757141E	degrees			degree tilt	azimuth		is observed that
Chandigarh,		to 40			angle.	angle		between
India		degrees						simulated and
								actual results
								have a range of
								1.9 to 8.1
								difference. The
								solar panel is
								facing towards
								south area.
								Therefore, it is
								acceptable.

Aligarh city,	27.89°N, 78.08°E	27.62°	-	8.05	29.3	197.8	4037081.3 Wh/m2	By comparing, it
India				kWh/m2-	degree	azimuth	(11.21 kWh/m2-day)	is observed that
				day		angle		the tilt angle
								between
								simulated and
								actual have a 1.68
								difference. The
								solar panel is
								facing towards
								south area.
								Therefore, it is
								acceptable.
New Dehli,	28.61°N, 77.20°E	27.95°	-	6.75	31.3	199.8	4006374.31 Wh/m2	By comparing, it
India				kwh/m2-	degree.	azimuth	(11.13 kwh/m2-day)	is observed that
				day		angle.		the tilt angle
								between
								simulated and
								actual have a 3.35
								difference. The

								solar panel is
								facing towards
								south area.
								Therefore, it is
								acceptable.
Bilecik Seyh	40.189697N,	Average:	-	-	24.9-	247.4	468122.73 Wh/m2	By comparing, it
Edebali	29.966415 E	10			degree tilt	azimuth		is observed that
University		degrees			angle.	angle.		the tilt angle
Engineering								between
Faculty,								simulated and
Turkey								actual have a
								significant 14.9
								difference.
								Therefore, it is
								rejected.
Chennai,	13.0827 N, 80.2707 E	0-to-36-	South	-	18.3-	206.7	949149 Wh/m2	By comparing,
India		degree	(180),		degree tilt	azimuth		the tilt angle and
		tilt.	South-		angle.	angle.		azimuth angle
			East					simulated are
l						1		

			(135)					within the range
			and					of the actual
			South-					results.
			West					Therefore, it is
			(225)					acceptable.
Beijing,	39.9042 N, 116.4074	0-to-54-	South	-	40.5-	186.4	1072875.52 Wh/m2	By comparing,
China	Е	degree	(180),		degree tilt	azimuth		the tilt angle and
		tilt.	South-		angle.	angle.		azimuth angle
			East					simulated are
			(135)					within the range
			and					of the actual
			South-					results.
			West					Therefore, it is
			(225)					acceptable.
Bukit Kayu	6.478000450954776	10-	180	-	7.3-degree	180.0	838748.7 Wh/m2	Since the thesis
Hitam,	N,	degree	azimuth		tilt angle.	azimuth		paper provided
SolarVest©,	100.4283292590189	tilt.	angles.			angle.		the azimuth
Malaysia	Е							angle, the
								simulation will
								· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·

								determine	the
								optimum	tilt
								angle by	fixing
								the pr	rovided
								azimuth	angle.
								Therefore,	the
								obtained ti	lt angle
								has a differ	ence of
								2.7 and	it is
								accepted.	
Scatec	5.862950268444186	10-	180	-	6.7-degree	180	869669.16 Wh/m2	Since the	thesis
Itramas solar 65MW	N, 100 53893544057493	degree	azimuth		tilt	azimuth		paper p	rovided
Gurun Solar	E	tilt	angles			angles		the a	azimuth
Power Plant, Pendang								angle,	the
Kedah								simulation	will
								determine	the
								optimum	tilt
								angle by	fixing
								the p	rovided
			1			1	1	1	

									azimuth angle
									Therefore, the
									obtained tilt angle
									has a difference of
									3.3 and it is
									accepted.
Scatec	4.934544	N,	10-	180	-	1.0-degree	180.0	797983.63 Wh/m2	The simulation
Itramas Solar 66 MW	103.337056 E		degree	azimuth		tilt angle.	azimuth		will determine the
Merchang			tilt	angles			angle		optimum tilt
Solar Power Plant.									angle by fixing
Marang,									the provided
Terrenganu									azimuth angle
									Therefore, the
									obtained tilt angle
									have a difference
									of 9 and it is
									rejected.

Scatec	2.299072	N,	10-	180	-	2.4-degree	180.0	743376 Wh/m2	The thesis paper
Itramas Solar	102.354431 E		degree	azimuth		tilt angle	azimuth		provided the
66MW Jasin			degree	azimum		the angle.	azimum		provided the
Solar Power			tilt	angles			angle		azimuth angle and
Plant,									will determine the
Bemban,									will determine the
Melaka									optimum tilt
									angle by fixing
									the azimuth
									angle. Therefore,
									the obtained tilt
									angle have a
									difference of 7.6
									and it is rejected.

4.6 Accuracy of Simulation

Table 4.6 below shows the accuracy of the model, where various thesis paper results are used to compare with the simulated results.

On-site Location	On-site Results	Simulated Results	Accept/Reject
Padang Besar, Perlis	-10-degree tilt	-10-degree tilt	Accept
	South 20-degree	160 degrees from North	
	East	48.95 kWh/m2	
	43.92 - 43.3		
	kwh/m2		
Ilorin, Nigeria	22-degree tilt	28.4-degree tilt angle.	Reject
	Facing South	296.9 degree from	
		North.	
		29931.94 Wh/m2	
Panjab University	30 degrees to 40	38.1-degree tilt angle.	Accept
Chandigarh, India	degrees	206.4 orientation angle	
		of solar panel.	
		1065090.60 Wh/m2	
Aligarh city, India	27.62-degree tilt	29.3-degree tilt	Accept
	8.05 kWh/m2-	197.8 degree from	
	day	North	
		11.21 kWh/m2-day	
New Dehli, India	27.95-degree tilt	31.3-degree tilt	Accept
	6.75 kwh/m2-day	199.8 degree from	
		North	
		11.13 kwh/m2-day	
Bilecik Seyh	Average: 10-	24.9-degree tilt.	Reject
Edebali University	degree tilt.	247.4 degree from	
Engineering		North.	
Faculty, Turkey		468122.73 Wh/m2	

Table 4.6: Accept/Reject for Similarity of Results.

Chennai, India	0-to-36-degree	18.3-degree tilt angle.	Accept
	tilt.	206.7 azimuth angle.	
	South (180),	949149 Wh/m2	
	South-East (135)		
	and South-West		
	(225)		
Beijing, China	0-to-54-degree	40.5-degree tilt angle.	Accept
	tilt. South (180),	186.4 azimuth angle.	
	South-East (135)	1072875.52 Wh/m2	
	and South-West		
	(225)		
Bukit Kayu Hitam,	10-degree tilt.	7.3-degree tilt angle.	Accept
SolarVest©,	South (180)	180 azimuth angles.	
Malaysia		838748.7 Wh/m2	
Scatec Itramas solar	10-degree tilt.	6.7-degree tilt	Accept
65MW Gurun Solar Power Plant	South (180)	180 azimuth angles.	
Pendang, Kedah		869669.16 Wh/m2	
Scatec Itramas Solar	10-degree tilt.	1.0-degree tilt angle.	Reject
Solar Power Plant,	South (180)	180 azimuth angles.	
Marang,		797983.63 Wh/m2	
Terrenganu			
Scatec Itramas Solar	10-degree tilt.	2.4-degree tilt angle.	Reject
66MW Jasin Solar Power Plant	South (180)	180 azimuth angles.	
Bemban, Melaka		743376 Wh/m2	

The purpose for the simulation to fix the tilt angle and surface azimuth of the solar panel according to the thesis paper in Padang Besar, Perak is to cross check the solar irradiation received. By fixing -10 tilt angle and 160 azimuth angles, the simulated total solar irradiation is 48.95 kWh/m2, whereas Padang Besar have range of solar irradiation $43.3 \sim 43.92$ kwh/m2. The difference between simulated and actual parameter is ranging 5.03 ~ 5.65. Therefore, the simulated solar irradiation is accepted.

The solar irradiation in Padang Besar is lesser than the simulated value is due to external factors experienced by the solar panel, such as cloud and shadings that affect the solar received on the solar panel (Arun, 2016).

The case study in Ilorin, Nigeria, have a 22-degree facing south solar panel as the optimum settings. By comparison, the simulated results recommended a 28.4degree tilt, 296.9 azimuth angle for a total maximum solar irradiation. The simulated results are rejected due to the simulation unable to obtain similar results, where the difference of tilt angle is a significant 22 degree. In addition, the simulated azimuth angle is facing Northwest, as compared to facing south of Ilorin.

For the case study in Bilecik Seyh Edebali University Engineering Faculty, Turkey, the author set up 6 solar panels into different tilt angle ranging from 10 degrees to 60 degrees with 10-degree intervals each. The author found out that within the duration of May to August 2014, the optimum tilt angle is 10 degrees throughout the months. Therefore, the optimum tilt angle of this case study can be considered as 10 degrees. By comparing with the simulated model, it is shown that the optimum tilt angle and azimuth angle are 24.9-degree tilt and 247.4 azimuth angle. However, the simulated results are rejected due to unable to simulate similar results, where the difference of tilt angle is 14.9 degree.

The case study in Aligarh City, India, the author determined that the optimum tilt angle with the average total solar irradiation per day are 27.62-degree tilt and 8.05 kWh/m2-day respectively. The simulated model determines that the optimum tilt angle with the average total solar irradiation per day are 29.3-degree tilt and 11.21 kWh/m2-day respectively. By comparison, the difference of tilt angle and solar irradiation are 1.68 degree and 3.16 kWh/m2-day respectively. Although the author did not specify the orientation of the solar panel, the simulated recommended that the azimuth angle should be 197.8 degree, where it is facing towards south. In addition, the tilt angle is similar to the latitude of the location, with is consider as the optimum tilt angle (Danny, 2007). Therefore, the simulated result is accepted.

The case study in New Dehli, India, with the optimum tilt angle with the average total solar irradiation per day are 27.95-degree tilt and 6.75 kwh/m2-day

respectively. The simulated model estimates that the optimum tilt angle with the average total solar irradiation per day are 31.3-degree tilt and 11.13 kwh/m2-day respectively. By comparison, the difference of tilt angle and solar irradiation are 3.35 degree and 4.376 kWh/m2-day respectively. Although the author did not specify the orientation of the solar panel, the simulated recommended that the azimuth angle should be 199.8 degree, where it is facing towards south. Therefore, the simulated result is accepted.

For the case study in Chennai, India and Beijing, China, the author did not specify the year, date and duration of the case study, an assumption of a one-year duration is taken, which is 2019 to 2020 to fit in the project algorithm. As for Chennai, the thesis paper optimum tilt and azimuth angle are 0-36 degree and 180 to 225 degrees respectively. The simulated results recommended are 18.3 tilt and 206.7 azimuth angle. This simulated result is accepted as it fits the range of tilt angle and azimuth angle in Chennai. The description for the solar panel facing towards Southeast for the simulation is accepted due to more energy can be generated in the evening and more people are able to utilize (Laura, 2021).

The thesis paper optimum tilt and azimuth angle in Beijing, China are 0-54 degree and 180 to 225 degrees respectively. The simulated results recommended are 40.5 tilt and 186.4 azimuth angle. This simulated result is accepted as it fits the range of tilt angle and azimuth angle in Beijing. In addition, Maryon (2021), also recommended that the solar panel should be facing south, if the solar panel is installed in the Northern Hemisphere.

Thus, based on the comparison between various case study and the simulated model, the accuracy of the model can be determined by the formula below:

...

$$Accuracy = \frac{Number of case study accepted}{Number of case study compared} * 100\%$$
$$= \frac{8}{12} * 100\% = 66.67\%.$$

Hence, this simulated model has an accuracy rate of 66.67% based on 12 samples with 8 samples acceptance results. This accuracy comparison is carried out is because to prove that this project is reliable and safe for future project purposes.

In this section, the total maximum solar irradiation received in a year with be compared between the optimum tilt angle and azimuth angle of computational model and actual solar sites. According to the parameters provided by each solar sites company, the optimum tilt angle and azimuth angle for each solar sites are 10-degree tilt and 180 azimuth angles. Table 4.7 below shows the comparison for the total solar irradiation for each solar site. The formula for the differences is:

Differences = Total Solar Irradiation recieved with simulated parameters - Total Solar Irradiation received with provided parameters

Percentage DIfference

Solar site	Site	Simulatio	Total solar	Total	Difference	Percentag
	Parameter	n	irradiation	solar	s (Wh/m2)	e
	S	Parameter	received	irradiation		Differenc
		S	based on	received		e (%)
			Site	based on		
			(Wh/m2)	Simulatio		
				n		
				(Wh/m2)		
Bukit Kayu	10-degree	7.3-	837788.09	838748.6	960.596	0.1147
Hitam,	tilt.	degree tilt.	9	9		
SolarVest©	180	180				
, Malaysia	azimuth	azimuth				
	angles.	angles.				
Scatec	10-degree	6.7-	868190.47	869669.1	1,478.69	0.1703
Itramas solar	tilt.	degree tilt.		6		
65MW						

Table 4.7: Percentage Difference between Simulation and Site Parameters

Gurun	180	180				
Solar	azimuth	azimuth				
Power	analas	analaa				
Pendang	aligies.	aligies.				
Kedah						
Scatec	10-degree	1.0-	788116.43	797983.6	9,867.21	1.252
Itramas Solar 66	tilt.	degree tilt		3		
MW	180	angle.				
Merchang	azimuth	180				
Solar						
Power	angles.	azimutn				
Marang.		angles.				
Terrenganu						
_						
Scatec	10-degree	2.4-	736798.02	743376	6,577.97	0.893
Itramas	tilt.	degree tilt				
66MW	180	angle.				
Jasin Solar		190				
Power	azimuth	180				
Plant,	angles.	azimuth				
Bemban, Malaka		angles.				
метака		÷				



Figure 4.1: Percentage Difference between Simulation and On-site Parameters

Based on the tabulated results and graph, all the parameters for tilt angle and azimuth angle for all solar sites are standardized as 10 degree and 180 degrees respectively. For the solar site in Bukit Kayu Hitam, the optimum simulated angle is 7.3 degree and 180 degrees. By computing the solar irradiation received in a year, the differences are 960.6 Wh/m2, which is equivalent to 0.9 peak sun hours. The percentage difference is about 0.1147%. The solar site in Pendang, Kedah, the optimum simulated angle is 6.7 degree and 180 degrees, with the computational solar irradiation received are 1478.7 Wh/m2, which is equivalent to 1.4 peak sun hours. The percentage difference is approximately 0.17032%. As for the solar site in Marang, Terrenganu, the simulated degree is 1.0 tilt angle and 180 azimuth angles. The differences of the solar irradiation received is 9867.21 Wh/m2, which equals to 9.8 peak sun hours, with a approximated percentage difference of 1.252%. Lastly, the solar site in Bemban, Melaka have a simulated degree of 2.4 tilt and facing true south (180 degree). The solar irradiation differences between the simulated angle and provided angle are 6577.97 Wh/m2, where equals to 6.5 peak sun hours, with a percentage difference of 0.893%.

According to the results above, the percentage difference for all 4 solar sites with the comparison of solar irradiation in a year, the range of percentage difference obtained are between 0 and 2, which is lesser than 10%. Based on Anne (2022) and Dr. Zeinab (2021), stated that if the experiment percentage variance obtained is lesser than 10%, the experiment results is considered acceptable. Therefore, the results are acceptable.

4.7 Presence of Carbon Dioxide due to Deforestation

In this section, the selected 17 solar sites are chosen to undergo case study, with the objective to determine the annual average solar irradiation, ranking, optimum tilt angle, azimuth angle and total solar irradiation in a year. However, in order to develop a large solar farm, an area of forest is needed to be cleared out to fully utilize the potential of solar harvesting energy. In other words, the area of forest is being cut down, known as deforestation will emit carbon dioxide towards the surroundings. Therefore, Table 4.8

below shows each of the solar sites is with the estimated carbon dioxide emission annually, based on the equivalent formula in Chapter 2.

Solar Site	Solar Site and Coordinate	Area	Carbon Dioxide
Number			Presence due to
			deforestation
			(tCO2/m2)
1	Tanjung Batu Hybrid Solar	2043.99m ²	0.068333015
	Power Plant	0.51 acres	
		0.20 hectares	
	Sandakan, Sabah	22001.28	
		feet ²	
	5°48'01.8"N 118°09'29.2"E		
2	Comtec Solar International	7355.08 m ²	0.070262512
	(m) Sdn Bhd	1.82 acres	
		0.74 hectares	
	Kuching, Sarawak	79169.45	
		feet ²	
	1°31'10.6"N 110°23'50.0"E		
3	Solar Power Plant Telok	612.96 m ²	0.068359436
	Melano, Sarawak Energy	0.15 acres	
	Berhad	0.06 hectares	
		6597.82	
	Lundu, Sarawak	feet ²	
	2°00'16.6"N 109°38'42.5"E		
4	Bukit Kayu Hitam	175301.82	0.069835274
	Solarvest 12MWp	m²	
		43.32 acres	
	Bukit Kayu Hitam, Kedah	17.53	
		hectares	
	6°28'40.8"N 100°25'42.0"E	1886933.09	
		feet ²	
5	Pokok Sena Solar PV plant	238087.17	0.069839763
		m²	
	Jitra, Kedah	58.83 acres	
		23.81	
	6°10'51.3"N 100°28'21.0"E	hectares	
		2562749.03	
		feet ²	

Table 4.8: Estimation Carbon Dioxide Presence

6	LSS PV 30MWac Kuala	405248.59	0.069827626
	Muda Kedah	m²	
		100.14 acres	
	Sungai Petani, Kedah	40.52	
		hectares	
	5°39'25.3"N 100°34'21.2"E	4362059.55	
		feet ²	
7	Elsoft Research Berhad	3089.49 m ²	0.070073572
		0.76 acres	
	Bayan Lepas, Pulau Pinang	0.31 hectares	
	5°17'22 0"NI 100°17'21 0"E	33254.96	
	5 17 55.0 N 100 17 21.0 E	Teet	
8	Taruc, Setapak	119.63 m ²	0.058376661
		0.03 acres	
	Setapak, Wilayah	0.01 hectares	
	Persekutuan Kuala Lumpur	1287.68 feet ²	
	3°13'00.8"N 101°43'58.8"E		
9	Utar Bandar Sungai Long	193 16 m ²	0 072308966
,	KB block roof top	0.05 acres	0.072500700
		0.02 hectares	
	Bandai Sungai Long,	2079.10	
	Selangor	feet ²	
10	3.0394° N, 101.7941° E	201.00 m2	0.069906709
10	Otar, Kampar Campus	0.08 acres	0.008890/08
	Kampar Perak	0.00 deres	
	Tumpur, Forun	3273.22 feet ²	
	4°20'27.1"N 101°08'40.9"E		
	A		0.0.000.000
11	Scatec Itramas solar 65MW	674400.75	0.069835922
	Gurun Solar Power Plant	In ²	
	Pendang Kedah	$67 \Lambda \Lambda$	
	r chually, Keuall	hectares	
	5°51'46.6"N 100°32'20.2"E	7259189.24	
		feet ²	
12	Scatec Itramas Solar 66MW	291212.29	0.069833052
	Jasin Solar Power Plant	m²	
		0.29 km²	
	Bemban, Melaka	71.96 acres	
		29.12	
	2°17'56.7"N 102°21'16.0"E	hectares	

		3134583.01 feet ²	
13	Scatec Itramas Solar 66 MW Merchang Solar Power Plant Marang, Terengganu 4°56'04.4"N 103°20'13.4"E	662380.10 m ² 163.68 acres 66.24 hectares 7129800.03 feet ²	0.069838098
14	Pekan Pahang Solar Farm Pekan, Pahang 3°19'24.9"N 103°25'20.9"E	458379.53 m ² 113.27 acres 45.84 hectares 4933956.26 feet ²	0.069839118
15	UITM Solar Park II (LSS2 Pasir Gudang) Masai, Johor 1°31'36.7"N 103°51'50.4"E	380982.34 m ² 94.14 acres 38.10 hectares 4100859.80 feet ²	0.069839237
16	Pasir Mas Solar Farm Pasir Mas, Kelantan 5°59'31.9"N 102°06'39.8"E	48307.22 m ² 11.94 acres 4.83 hectares 519974.62 feet ²	0.069825562
17	Kenyir Gunkul Solar Sdn Bhd Kuala Dungun, Terengganu 4°38'55.8"N 103°23'13.5"E	298248.64 m ² 73.70 acres 29.82 hectares 3210321.64 feet ²	0.06982461

4.8 Amount of Energy Generation in a Year

In this section, the amount of Energy generation in a year is being tabulated for the 17 solar sites. However, since that deforestation is able to emit carbon dioxide towards

the environment, this calculation is needed to estimate how much carbon dioxide can be avoided if these solar panels are being installed, at the substitution of the land loss due to deforestation. In addition, the energy generation also depends on the local climate of the locations, the optimum tilt and azimuth angle. Therefore, Table 4.9 shows each of the solar sites with the estimated carbon dioxide avoided annually, based on the equivalent in Chapter 2. However, for this case study of energy generation in a year, the estimation will undergo based on the information provided by the solar sites company.

Solar Site Number	Name and Coordinate	TotalMaximumSolarIrradiaiton(Wh/m2)	Efficiency (%)	Power Output (kWh/m2)
1	Bukit Kayu Hitam Solarvest 12MWp 6°28'40.8"N 100°25'42.0"E	942217.92	16	150.75
2	Scatec Itramas solar 65MW Gurun Solar Power Plant 5°51'46.6"N 100°32'20.2"E	982932.94	17.6	173.00
3	Scatec Itramas Solar 66MW Jasin Solar Power Plant 2°17'56.7"N 102°21'16.0"E	819103.23	17.6	144.16
4	Scatec Itramas Solar 66 MW	920331.52	17.6	161.98

Table 4.9: Power Output from Solar Irradiation

Merchang Solar Power Plant		
4°56'04.4"N 103°20'13.4"E		

4.9 Calculation of CO2 avoidance

In this section, the Carbon Dioxide Avoidance and the net carbon dioxide between deforestation and solar panel installation for each solar site are tabulated. The formula for determining the CO2 avoidance and Net CO2 is shown in Chapter 2. Due to the power generation from solar panels, how much carbon dioxide is able to be avoided and by comparing with the carbon dioxide emission from deforestation, a net carbon dioxide is being calculated. If the Net carbon dioxide is negative, meaning that the carbon dioxide avoided is higher than carbon dioxide emission. In other words, the solar panel is able to avoid the additional carbon dioxide being emitted to the surroundings. The carbon dioxide avoidance is based on the power output of the solar panel and the local climate with the optimum tilt and azimuth angle to achieve maximum carbon dioxide avoidance. However, for this case study of CO2 avoidance in a year, the estimation will undergo based on the information provided by the solar sites company.

Solar Site	Name and Coordinate	Power Output (kWh/m ²)	Carbon Avoidance	Carbon Dioxide Avoided $(tCO2/m^2)$
Number			Factor	11volded (teo2/m2)
			(tCO2/MWh)	
1	Bukit Kayu Hitam Solarvest 12MWp	150.75	0.639	0.096
	6°28'40.8"N 100°25'42.0"E			

Table 4.10: Carbon Dioxide Avoided.

2	Scatec Itramas solar 65MW Gurun Solar Power Plant 5°51'46.6"N 100°32'20.2"E	173.00	0.639	0.11
3	Scatec Itramas Solar 66MW Jasin Solar Power Plant 2°17'56.7"N 102°21'16.0"E	144.16	0.639	0.092
4	Scatec Itramas Solar 66 MW Merchang Solar Power Plant 4°56'04.4"N 103°20'13.4"E	161.98	0.639	0.104

Once the carbon dioxide emission due to deforestation and carbon dioxide avoidance due to solar panel installation is obtained annually for each solar sites, the net carbon dioxide can be computed as shown in Table 4.11. The net carbon dioxide formula is:

Net carbon dioxide

= Estimated carbon dioxide emission

- Carbon dioxide avoided

Solar Sit Number	e Solar Site	Estimated Carbon Dioxide Presence (tCO2/m2)	Carbon Dioxide Avoided (tCO2/m2)	Net Carbon Dioxide (tCO2/m2)
1	Tanjung Batu Hybrid Solar Power Plant	0.068333015	-	-
2	Comtec Solar International (m) Sdn Bhd	0.070262512	-	-
3	Solar Power Plant Telok Melano, Sarawak Energy Berhad	0.068359436	-	-
4	Bukit Kayu Hitam Solarvest 12MWp	0.069835274	0.096	-0.026
5	Pokok Sena Solar PV plant	0.069839763	-	-
6	LSS PV 30MWac Kuala Muda Kedah	0.069827626	-	-
7	Elsoft Research Berhad	0.070073572	-	-
8	Taruc, Setapak	0.058376661	-	-
9	Utar, Bandar Sungai Long, KB block roof top	0.072308966	-	-
10	Utar, Kampar Campus	0.068896708	-	-
11	Scatec Itramas solar 65MW Gurun Solar Power Plant	0.069835922	0.11	-0.041

Table 4.11: Net Carbon Dioxide for Each Solar Sites.

12	Scatec Itramas Solar 66MW	0.069833052	0.092	-0.022
	Jasin Solar Power Plant			
13	Scatec Itramas Solar 66 MW	0.069838098	0.104	-0.033
	Merchang Solar Power Plant			
14	Pekan Pahang Solar Farm	0.069839118	-	-
15	UITM Solar Park II (LSS2	0.069839237	-	-
	Pasir Gudang)			
16	Pasir Mas Solar Farm	0.069825562	-	-
17	Kenyir Gunkul Solar Sdn Bhd	0.06982461	-	-



Figure 4.2: Environmental Impact of Installation of Solar PV.

According to the computation of the net carbon dioxide, the solar sites with parameters provided have the similar value between carbon dioxide emission and carbon dioxide reduction, which results in a negative net carbon dioxide in a year. If one of the solar sites estimated a positive net carbon dioxide in a year shows that the carbon dioxide avoided per meter square in a year are unable to cover up the carbon dioxide emission per meter square in a year due to deforestation. One of the reasons that affect the net carbon dioxide is due to the local climate of the solar sites, where the lower the solar irradiation, the lower the power output. Another reason is the efficiency of the solar panel used. The higher the efficiency of the solar panel, the higher the power conversion from solar to electrical, therefore increases the carbon dioxide avoidance in a year. As a result, reduce the net carbon dioxide per meter square in a year.

4.10 Economic Impact

To calculate the economic impact in installation of solar farms, the formula given in Chapter 2, with the interest rate 1.75%, and inflation rate of 2.23%:

$$n_{pay} = -\frac{In[1 - S_{total}i'/P_{ann}]}{In(1+i')}$$

Where $i' = \frac{1+i}{1+j} - 1$, $i = 0.0175 \ j = 0.0223$, i' = -0.0054

Therefore, the economic cost and payback period for the four solar sites is estimated to be:

Solar site	Energy Output	Size of a	Number	Total area of	Total Energy Output (kwh)	Total Income
	(kwh/m2)	solar	of Pieces	solar panel (m2)		(RM)
		module				Tariff =
		used (m2)				RM0.395/kwh
Bukit Kayu	150.75	1.2 x 0.6	105000	75600	11397067.92	4,501,841.83
Hitam, Kedah						
Pendang,	173.00	1.978 x	189510	371851.97376	64328977.61	25,409,946.16
Kedah		0.992				
Bemban,	144.16	1.978 x	191130	375030.69888	54065238.82	21,355,769.34
Melaka		0.992				
Marang,	161.98	1.978 x	192420	377561.90592	61156853.38	24,156,957.086
Terengganu		0.992				

Table 4.12(a): Annual Income Calculation for Each Solar Sites

Table 4.12(b): Total Capacity for Each Solar Sites

Solar site	Rated power solar panel used (W)	Number of Pieces	Total rated power solar panel (W)
Bukit Kayu Hitam, Kedah	115	105000	12,075,000
Pendang, Kedah	345	189510	65,380,950

Bemban, Melaka	345	191130	65,939,850
Marang, Terengganu	345	192420	66,384,900

Table 4.12(c): Investment Cost for Each Solar Sites

Bukit Kayu Hitam, Kedah:

Parameters	Model value (RM/W)	Watt (W)	Total value (RM)	
Module	1.65	12,075,000	19,923,750	
Inverter	0.33	12,075,000	3,984,750	
Structural material				
Miscellaneous (electrical cables, etc.)	0.72	0.72 12,075,000		
Planning				
Installation work	2.91	12,075,000	35,138,250	
Shipping and travel				
Permits and direct labour				
Project margin				
Total without Tax			67,740,750	
Sales & Services Tax (SST)	6%		4,064,445	
Total	5.9466		71,805,195	

<u>Pendang, Kedah</u>

Parameters	Model value (RM/W)	Watt (W)	Total value (RM)
Module	1.65	65380950	107,878,567.5
Inverter	0.33	65380950	21,575,713.5
Structural material			
Miscellaneous (electrical cables, etc.)	0.72	65380950	47,074,284
Planning			
Installation work	2.91	65380950	190,258,564.5
Shipping and travel			
Permits and direct labour			
Project margin			
Total without Tax			366,787,129.5
Sales & Services Tax (SST)	6%		22,007,227.77
Total	5.9466		388,794,357.27

<u>Bemban, Melaka</u>

Parameters	Model value (RM/W)	Watt (W)	Total value (RM)
Module	1.65	65939850	108,800,752.5
Inverter	0.33	65939850	21,760,150.5
Structural material		65939850	
Miscellaneous (electrical cables, etc.)	0.72	65939850	47,476,692
Planning			
Installation work	2.91	65939850	191,884,963.5
Shipping and travel			
Permits and direct labour			
Project margin			
Total without Tax			369,922,558.5
Sales & Services Tax (SST)	6%		22,195,353.51
Total	5.9466		392,117,912.01

Marang, Terengganu

Parameters	Model value (RM/W)	Watt (W)	Total value (RM)
Module	1.65	66384900	109,535,085
Inverter	0.33	66384900	21,907,017
Structural material			
Miscellaneous (electrical cables, etc.)	0.72	66384900	47,797,128
Planning			
Installation work	2.91	66384900	193,180,059
Shipping and travel			
Permits and direct labour			
Project margin			
Total without Tax			372,419,289
Sales & Services Tax (SST)	6%		22,345,157.34
Total	5.9466		394,764,446.34

Solar site	Investment cost	Annual Income	Real Interest Rate, i'	Payback formula	Estimated Payback period
Bukit Kayu Hitam, Kedah	71,805,195	4,501,841.83	-0.0054	$-\frac{In[1-S_{total}i'/P_{ann}]}{In(1+i')}$	15.26
Pendang, Kedah	388,794,357.27	25,409,946.16	-0.0054	$-\frac{In[1-S_{total}i'/P_{ann}]}{In(1+i')}$	14.66
Bemban, Melaka	392,117,912.01	21,355,769.34	-0.0054	$-\frac{In[1-S_{total}i'/P_{ann}]}{In(1+i')}$	17.46
Marang, Terengganu	394,764,446.34	24,156,957.09	-0.0054	$-\frac{In[1-S_{total}i'/P_{ann}]}{In(1+i')}$	15.62

Table 4.12(d): Payback Period Estimated

After all the total investment cost, annual income is calculated, the payback period is estimated for all 4 solar sites. According to the payback period table, the earliest payback period is Pendang, Kedah, with the period of 14.66 years, followed by Bukit Kayu Hitam, with the period of 15.26 years. Next, the payback period in Marang, Terengganu is 15.62 years. Lastly, the payback period in Bemban, Melaka is 17.46 years. Hence, the payback period is successfully being estimated. Figure 4.3 below shows the graph for the summary of payback period for 4 solar sites.



Figure 4.3: Investment Cost, Annual Income, Payback Period

There are a few main reasons regarding the payback period that can be observed:

- Pendang, Kedah have the earliest payback period, this is due to having the highest annual income among the other solar sites. The high annual income is associated to the solar irradiation received in a year and the income rates (RM/kwh), which will affect the annual income.
- 2. Bemban, Melaka have the latest payback period, due to having the highest investment cost among the other solar sites. As compare with the other 3 solar sites, the solar irradiation received in a year is the lowest. The high investment cost is associated with the number of panels, whereas the annual income is associated with the solar irradiation received in a year.

4.10.1 Special Case Study on Interest Rate

In this section, assume that a higher interest rate is impose for the payback period value, which is about 6%, while maintaining the inflation rate of 2.3%. By substituting into the payback period formula:

$$n_{pay} = -\frac{In[1 - S_{total}i'/P_{ann}]}{In(1+i')}$$

Where $i' = \frac{1+i}{1+j} - 1$, i = 0.06, j = 0.023, i' = 0.036, which is a positive real interest rate.

Therefore, by comparing the low interest rate and high interest rate, the payback period for the 4 solar sites is shown in Table 4.13.

Solar site	Investment	Annual	Low	Estimate	High	Estimate
	cost	Income	Real	d	Real	d
			Interest	Payback	Intere	Payback
			Rate, <i>i</i> '	period	st	Period
				(Low)	Rate, <i>i</i> '	(High)
Bukit	71,805,195	4,501,841.8	-0.0054	15.26	0.036	24.14
Kayu		3				
Hitam,						
Kedah						
Pendang,	388,794,357.	25,409,946.	-0.0054	14.66	0.036	22.63
Kedah	27	16				
Bemban,	392,117,912.	21,355,769.	-0.0054	17.46	0.036	30.59
Melaka	01	34				
Marang,	394,764,446.	24,156,957.	-0.0054	15.62	0.036	25.09
Terengga	34	09				
nu						

Table 4.13: Effect of Interest Rate on Payback Period.

Based on the comparison between high interest rate and low interest rate of a country, it will affect the payback period of the solar farm invested. According to Chris (2021), mentioned that as the interest rate increases, each individual will reduce the usage of currency, therefore, stock price drops. However, as the interest rate decreases,
the individual will increase their spending, business and stock therefore increases. Hence, the one of the limitations of the solar farm is that the payback period is related to the country's economy.

In summary, in order to effectively installed and build a solar farm, while having a low payback period, the main parameters that needed to take account is the solar irradiation received at the particular location. This is to increase the total annual income and energy produced, while able to maintain operation for many years. In addition, given that the tariff rate is low, the efficiency of the solar panel used is also important, as the higher the efficiency, the higher the electricity generated, therefore, generate higher income.

4.11 Summary

In summary, Section 4 shows the various results by applying the formula in CHAPTER 2 and methodology in CHAPTER 3. There are 17 solar sites that undergoes the simulation of the optimum tilt angle. The various research paper review in CHAPTER 2, the results of the research paper will be used to compare with the simulated results obtained from the python modelling in order to prove that the simulation model is reliable. Hence, the accuracy obtained from the simulation results is about 66.67%, which is acceptable. In addition, the 4 solar sites result obtained from case study is also compared with the simulated results. The percentage error difference obtained are within the range of between 0 and 2. Hence, it is acceptable. Besides, the carbon dioxide presence, carbon dioxide reduction and net carbon dioxide are also being simulated in this model. Overall, the net carbon dioxide for all solar sites is negative, meaning that it is a positive remark, where the installed solar farm is able to reduce the amount of carbon dioxide in the surroundings. Due to lack of information in other solar sites, only 4 solar sites will be used to model and estimated the payback period. The payback period of a solar farm has a relationship with the economy of the country. Hence, the payback period is successfully estimated and simulated.

CHAPTER 5

CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

5.1 Conclusions

This project is aimed to simulate and model the optimum tilt angle of a location automatically using computer. This project was developed using python, a software that enables to compute the suitable optimum tilt angle of a location. There are 4 main steps that were involved in this project, which are the manually download the metrological data from Solcast ©, Determine the optimum tilt angle based on the data, Estimate the carbon dioxide reduction for installation of solar farm and the estimation of payback period of the solar farm. When the metrological data is downloaded, the python program is able to capture the data and perform analysis. During the analysis, with the suitable formula and modelling, the optimum tilt angle was estimated, by simulation of a solar panel from 0 to 90 degrees elevation angle and 0 to 360 degrees orientation of a solar panel. This optimum tilt angle is to obtain the maximum solar irradiation in a year. In this section, the simulated results will be used to compare with other various researcher results, and hence, the obtained accuracy of the modelling is about 66.67%. In addition, with the given parameters, the percentage error obtained were ranging between 0 to 2%. Next, the carbon dioxide reduction of the location is performed and estimated with python programming. All the selected solar farm is able to reduce the carbon dioxide level. Last, the economic impact and payback period of the solar farm is estimated. In conclusion, the aim and objectives of this project have been achieved. This programming for the optimum tilt angle has a limitation, which is time consuming, as it may take minimum one hour to simulate a one-year metrological data. In summary, the overall accuracy for the optimum tilt angle is about 66.67%. Hence, the proposed system with reasonably accuracy works well.

5.2 Recommendations for future work

The first problem encounter in this project is the accuracy of the simulation carbon dioxide reduction and economic impact. Although the optimum tilt angle in this project achieves a reasonable accuracy of 66.67%, the accuracy of the estimated carbon dioxide reduction and the economic impact do not have any reference to be compared. Hence, the results in this simulation are based on estimation. The solution for the first problem is to engage in a meeting with the renowned Solar Photovoltaic company in order to enclose the information for reference purposes.

The next problem encounter in this project is the running simulation for determine the optimum tilt angle. The minimum running time for a one-year simulation is about 1 hour, maximum is about 3 hours. The solution of the problem is to further enhance the looping system of the programming in order to reduce the simulation running time and further increase the capacity of the year of metrological data.

REFERENCES

A1ASolar. (2022). *4 differences between commercial and residential solar power*. [online]. Available at: https://a1asolar.com/4-differences-between-commercial-and-residential-solar-power/. [Accessed on 4 April 2022].

Abdul, H.R., Md, P.A., Mohammad, Y.H., et al. (2019). Comparison of New and Previous Net Energy Metering (NEM) Scheme in Malaysia. *ELEKTRIKA-Journal of Electrical Engineering*, Volume 18(1), p.p. 36–42. DOI: 10.11113/elektrika.v18n1.141

Ajao, K.R., Ambali, R.M. and Mahmoud, M.O. (2013). Determination of the Optimal Tilt Angle for Solar Photovoltaic Panel in Ilorin, Nigeria. *Journal of Engineering Science and Technology Review*, Volume 6(1), p.p. 87-90. DOI: 10.25103/jestr.061.17

Akif, K., Harun, O., Metin, K., et al. (2015). Calculation of Optimum Fixed Tilt Angle of PV Panels Depending on Solar Angles and Comparison of the Results with Experimental Study Conducted in Summer in Bilecik, Turkey. *2015 9th International Conference on Electrical and Electronics Engineering (ELECO)*, 26-28 November. DOI: 10.1109/ELECO.2015.7394517

Amaya, M.G., Inmaculada, A. and Javier, U. (2019). Chapter 5 - Solar energy availability. *Solar Hydrogen Production*, p.p. 113 - 149. DOI: https://doi.org/10.1016/B978-0-12-814853-2.00005-9

Anne, H. (2022). *Sources of Error in Science Experiments*. [online]. Available at: https://sciencenotes.org/error-in-science/>. [Accessed on 4 April 2022].

Arun, P.S.R., Poornima, M. and Dr. Brijesh, K. (2016). Analysis of factors affecting the solar radiation received by any region. 2016 International Conference on Emerging Trends in Communication Technologies (ETCT), 18-19 November. DOI: 10.1109/ETCT.2016.7882980

Asad, U., Hassan, I., Zaki, M., et al. (2019). Investigation of optimal tilt angles and effects of soiling on PV energy production in Pakistan. *Renewable Energy*, Volume 139, p.p. 830-843. DOI: https://doi.org/10.1016/j.renene.2019.02.114

Baghzouz, Y. (2013). *Sunlight and its Properties*. [online]. Available at: https://studylib.net/doc/18370967/sunlight-and-its-properties. [Accessed on 4 April 2022].

Banu, P., Haziah, A.H., Noor, H.H., et al. (2019). The study of photovoltaic systems performance using various azimuth angles and solar array tilt positions. *Journal of Physics: Conference Series*, Volume 1432. DOI: 10.1088/1742-6596/1432/1/012050

Basharat, J., Abid, T.S. and Naiem, A. (2016). Estimation of solar radiation and optimum tilt angles for south-facing surfaces in Humid Subtropical Climatic Region of India. *Engineering Science and Technology, an International Journal*, Volume 19, Issue 4, p.p. 1826-1835. DOI: https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jestch.2016.10.004

BBC. (2022). *Impact of human activity*. [online]. Available at: <https://www.bbc.co.uk/bitesize/guides/zt6sfg8/revision/2#:~:text=Extra%20carbon %20dioxide%20in%20the,temperature%20is%20called%20global%20warming%20> [Accessed on 4 April 2022].

Bernama. (2021). *UiTM – First IPT in Terengganu to implement solar project*. [online]. Available at: https://themalaysianreserve.com/2021/09/21/uitm-first-ipt-in-terengganu-to-implement-solar-project/. [Accessed on 4 April 2022].

Brendan, M. (2014). Counting trees, carbon and climate change. *Special Issue: Poverty and development*, Volume 11, Issue 1, p.p.19-23. DOI: https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1740-9713.2014.00720.x

Carol, F. (2020). *How Often Does Google Maps Update Satellite Images?*. [online]. Available at:<https://www.techwalla.com/articles/how-often-does-google-maps-update-satellite-images>. [Accessed on 4 April 2022].

Casey, J.P. (2019). *Road to nowhere: great solar disappointments*. [online]. Available at: https://www.power-technology.com/analysis/solar-failed-projects-struggling/. [Accessed on 4 April 2022].

CFI. (2015). *What is Python (in Machine Learning)?*. [online]. Available at: https://corporatefinanceinstitute.com/resources/knowledge/other/python-in-machine-learning/. [Accessed on 4 April 2022].

Chisaki, W. (2018). *China, India Lead Global Solar Expansion as Costs Fall*. [online]. Available at: https://www.bloombergquint.com/business/china-india-lead-global-solar-power-expansion-as-costs-fall. [Accessed on 4 April 2022].

Chong, K.K., Chay, K.G. and Chin, K.H. (2011). Study of a solar water heater using stationary V-trough collector. *Renwable Energy*, Volume 39, p.p. 207-215. DOI: https://doi.org/10.1016/j.renene.2011.08.002

Chris, S. (2021). *How Interest Rates Affect the U.S. Markets*. [online]. Available at: <<u>https://www.investopedia.com/articles/stocks/09/how-interest-rates-affect-</u>markets.asp>. [Accessed on 4 April 2022].

Daftlogic. (2022). *Google Maps Area Calculator Tool*. [online]. Available at: <<u>https://www.daftlogic.com/projects-google-maps-area-calculator-tool.htm</u>>. [Accessed on 4 April 2022].

Danny, H.W.L., and Tony, N.T.L. (2007). Determining the Optimum Tilt Angle and Orientation for Solar Energy Collection Based on Measured Solar Radiance Data. *International Journal of Photoenergy*, Volume 2007. DOI: 10.1155/2007/85402

David, F., Vignest, R., Ran, F., et al. (2020). U.S. Solar Photovoltaic System and Energy Storage Cost Benchmark: Q1 2020. [online]. Available at:< https://www.nrel.gov/docs/fy21osti/77324.pdf> [Accessed on 4 April 2022].

Deolalkar, S.P. (2016). Chapter 8 - Solar Power. *Designing Green Cement Plants*, p.p. 251-258. DOI: https://doi.org/10.1016/B978-0-12-803420-0.00038-X.

Dominykas, V. A. and Modestas, P. A. (2016). SOLAR RADIATION MODEL FOR DEVELOPMENT AND CONTROL OF SOLAR ENERGY SOURCES. *Mokslas – Lietuvos Ateitis / Science – Future of Lithuania*, 8(3), 289-295. DOI: https://doi.org/10.3846/mla.2016.932

Dr. Nick, E. (2019). *Solcast: Solar irradiance forecasting for the solar powered future*. [online]. Available at: https://aws.amazon.com/blogs/publicsector/solcast-solar-irradiance-forecasting-for-the-solar-powered-

future/#:~:text=Solcast%20is%20a%20global%20solar,platform%3A%20the%20Sol cast%20API%20Toolkit>. [Accessed on 4 April 2022].

Dr. Zeinab, J.V. (2021). *How much variation between experimental and numerical results is acceptable?*. [online]. Available at: https://www.researchgate.net/post/How-much-variation-between-experimental-and-numerical-results-is-

acceptable#:~:text=For%20any%20deformation%20analysis%20up%20to%2010%2 5%20variation%20is%20acceptable>. [Accessed on 4 April 2022].

Ekadewi, A.H. and Djatmiko, I. and Prabowo. (2013). The Optimal Tilt Angle of a Solar Collector. *Energy Procedia*, Volume 32, p.p. 166-175. DOI: https://doi.org/10.1016/j.egypro.2013.05.022

EnergySage. (2022). *Solar panel size and weight explained: how big are solar panels?*. [online]. Available at:</https://news.energysage.com/average-solar-panel-size-weight/>. [Accessed on 4 April 2022].

ETEnergyWorld. (2018). *Global electricity demand up 3.1 per cent in 2017; China, India account for 70 per cent: IEA.* [online]. Available at: https://energy.economictimes.indiatimes.com/news/power/global-electricity-demand-up-3-1-per-cent-in-2017-china-india-account-for-70-per-cent-iea/63459450>. [Accessed on 4 April 2022].

EU. (2022). *NSRDB Solar Radiation*. [online]. Available at: < https://joint-research-centre.ec.europa.eu/pvgis-photovoltaic-geographical-information-system/pvgis-data-download/nsrdb-solar-radiation_en>. [Accessed on 4 April 2022].

FirstSolar. (2022). *First Solar Series* 4TM *PV Module*. [online]. Available at: <https://www.firstsolar.com/-/media/First-Solar/Technical-Documents/Series-4-Datasheets/Series-4V3-Module-Datasheet.ashx>. [Accessed on 4 April 2022].

Gerardo, R.A.G. (2005). *Solar Energy Potential At Different Latitudes*. [online]. Available at: https://www.altenergymag.com/article/2005/08/solar-energy-potential-at-different-

latitudes/120/#:~:text=At%20the%20equator%2C%20the%20sun,angle%20of%20th e%20sun%20declines>. [Accessed on 4 April 2022].

GlobalForestWatch. (2020).Malaysia. [online]. Available at: <https://globalforestwatch.org/dashboards/country/MYS/?category=summary&locati on=WyJjb3VudHJ5IiwiTVlTII0%3D&map=eyJjZW50ZXIiOnsibGF0Ijo0LjExMzI4 NTU5OTg1ODU2NSwibG5nIjoxMDkuNDU0MjA0NTU0OTgxN30sInpvb20iOjM uNDc3OTI5NjQ2NzQ4NTg1LCJjYW5Cb3VuZCI6ZmFsc2UsImRhdGFzZXRzIjpb eyJvcGFjaXR5IjowLjcsInZpc2liaWxpdHkiOnRydWUsImRhdGFzZXQiOiJwcmltY XJ5LWZvcmVzdHMiLCJsYXllcnMiOlsicHJpbWFyeS1mb3Jlc3RzLTIwMDEiXX0 seyJkYXRhc2V0IjoicG9saXRpY2FsLWJvdW5kYXJpZXMiLCJsYXllcnMiOlsiZGl zcHV0ZWQtcG9saXRpY2FsLWJvdW5kYXJpZXMiLCJwb2xpdGljYWwtYm91b mRhcmllcyJdLCJib3VuZGFyeSI6dHJ1ZSwib3BhY2l0eSI6MSwidmlzaWJpbGl0eS I6dHJ1ZX0seyJkYXRhc2V0IjoidHJIZS1jb3Zlci1sb3NzIiwibGF5ZXJzIjpbInRyZW UtY292ZXItbG9zcyJdLCJvcGFjaXR5IjoxLCJ2aXNpYmlsaXR5Ijp0cnVlLCJ0aW11 bGluZVBhcmFtcyI6eyJzdGFydERhdGUiOiIyMDAyLTAxLTAxIiwiZW5kRGF0ZS I6IjIwMjAtMTItMzEiLCJ0cmltRW5kRGF0ZSI6IjIwMjAtMTItMzEifSwicGFyYW 1zIjp7InRocmVzaG9sZCI6MzAsInZpc2liaWxpdHkiOnRydWV9fV19&showMap=t rue>. [Accessed on 4 April 2022].

GreenTumble. (2017). *Harmful Effects of Non-Renewable Resources on the Environment*. [online]. Available at <https://greentumble.com/harmful-effects-of-non-renewable-resources-on-the-

environment/#:~:text=Greenhouse%20gas%20emissions,different%20levels%20of% 20greenhouse%20gases.> [Accessed on 4 April 2022]..

GSA. (2022). *Global Solar Atlas*. [online]. Available at: https://globalsolaratlas.info/map?c=9.968851,9.333771,2. [Accessed on 4 April 2022].

Hamdan, A. (Ph.D), Syahrin, S., Peter, W.S.O., et al. (2017). The Change of Malaysian Standard Time: A Motion and Debate in the Malaysian Parliament. *International Journal of Academic Research in Business and Social Sciences*, 2017, Volume 7, No. 12. DOI: 10.6007/IJARBSS/v7-i12/3725. ISSN: 2222-6990.

Harrington, L.M.B. (2009). Resource Management, Rural. *International Encyclopedia* of Human Geography, p.p. 390-397. DOI: https://doi.org/10.1016/B978-008044910-4.00907-X

Ir. Dr. Sanjayan, V., Dr. Wee, N.C. and Tan, W.H. (2019). National Survey Report of PV Power Applications in Malaysia. *International Energy Agency*. [online]. Available

at: https://iea-pvps.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/08/NSR_Malaysia_2019.pdf>. [Accessed on 4 April 2022].

Isidoro, L.B., Pablo, G.M., Miguel, L., et al. (2017). Impact of Energy Losses Due to Failures on Photovoltaic Plant Energy Balance. *Energies 2018*, 11(2), 363. DOI: https://doi.org/10.3390/en11020363.

Izzul, I. (2021). *Malaysia's October inflation at 2.9% year-on-year — DOSM*. [online]. Available at: https://www.theedgemarkets.com/article/malaysias-october-2021-inflation-29-yearonyear-%E2%80%94-dosm. [Accessed on 4 April 2022].

Jack, C. (2011). *Astro Navigation Demystified*. [online]. Available at:<https://astronavigationdemystified.com/calculating-longitude/>. [Accessed on 4 April 2022].

Jin, Z.H., Xu, K., Zhang, Y., et al. (2017). Installation Optimization on the Tilt and Azimuth Angles of the Solar Heating Collectors for High Altitude Towns in Western Sichuan. *Procedia Engineering*, Volume 205, p.p. 2995-3002. DOI: https://doi.org/10.1016/j.proeng.2017.10.225

Joannes, L., Dimitar, B., Greet, V.E., et al. (2019). Impact of Solar Panel Orientation on the Integration of SolarEnergy in Low-Voltage Distribution Grids. *International Journal of Photoenergy*, Volume 2020. DOI: https://doi.org/10.1155/2020/2412780

John, A.D., William, A.B. (2013). Solar Engineering of Thermal Processes, Fourth Edition. [online]. Available at:< https://www.sku.ac.ir/Datafiles/BookLibrary/45/John%20A.%20Duffie,%20William %20A.%20Beckman(auth.)-

Solar%20Engineering%20of%20Thermal%20Processes,%20Fourth%20Edition%20(2013).pdf>. [Accessed on 4 April 2022].

Jonathan, S. (2020). *Solar Time and Solar Time Python Calculator*. [online]. Available at:<https://faculty.eng.ufl.edu/jonathan-scheffe/wp-content/uploads/sites/100/2020/08/Solar-Time1419.pdf>. [Accessed on 4 April 2022].

Konrad, M. (2019). *Photovoltaics Fundamentals, Technology, and Practice*, p.p. 33. [online]. Available at: https://books.google.com.my/books?id=AMNcDwAAQBAJ&printsec=frontcover#v=onepage&q&f=false. [Accessed on 4 April 2022].

Laura, R. (2021). Solar panel orientation: How using East-West structures improves the performance of your project. [online]. Available at:<https://ratedpower.com/blog/solar-panel-orientation/>. [Accessed on 4 April 2020].

Louis, E. and Frenzel, Jr. (2018). Chapter 4 - Electronic Circuits: Linear/Analog: The Building Blocks of Electronic Equipment. *Electronics Explained (Second Edition)*, p.p. 63-102. DOI: https://doi.org/10.1016/B978-0-12-811641-8.00004-7

Lucien, W. (2018). BASICS IN SOLAR RADIATION AT EARTH SURFACE. DOI: 10.13140/RG.2.2.36149.93920

Lumen. (2022). *The Payback Method*. [online]. Available at: <https://courses.lumenlearning.com/boundless-finance/chapter/the-payback-method/#:~:text=The%20payback%20period%20is%20the,estimated%20annual%20 net%20cash%20flow>. [Accessed on 4 April 2022].

Lyu, F., Xu, H.H., Wang, S.C., et al. (2019). National Survey Report of PV Power Applications in China 2019. *International Energy Agency*. Available at: https://iea-pvps.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/09/NSR_China_2019.pdf>. [Accessed on 4 April 2022].

Manoj, K.S., Deepak, K. and Sandeep, D., et al. (2020). Optimal Tilt Angle Determination for PV Panels Using Real Time Data Acquisition. *Global Challenges*, Volume 4, Issue 8. DOI: https://doi.org/10.1002/gch2.201900109

Mark, Z, J. and Vijaysinh, J. (2018). World estimates of PV optimal tilt angles and ratios of sunlight incident upon tilted and tracked PV panels relative to horizontal panels. *Solar Energy*, Volume 169, p.p. 55-66. DOI: https://doi.org/10.1016/j.solener.2018.04.030

Maryon, E.M., Mohd, A.I, Yan, Y.F., et al. (2021). On the Optimal Tilt Angle and Orientation of an On-Site Solar Photovoltaic Energy Generation System for Sabah's Rural Electrification. DOI: https://doi.org/10.3390/su13105730

Mehmet, S.C. and Mehmet, S.M. (2015). A Research On Determining The Panel Inclination Angle In Terms Of The Place And Seasons. *Journal of Multidisciplinary Engineering Science and Technology (JMEST)*, Volume 2, Issue 8. ISSN: 3159-0040

MGTC. (2017). 2017 CDM ELECTRICITY BASELINE FOR MALAYSIA. [online]. Available at: https://www.mgtc.gov.my/wp-content/uploads/2019/12/2017-CDM-Electricity-Baseline-Final-Report-Publication-Version.pdf>. [Accessed on 4 April 2022].

Myisha, A. and Jahid, H. G.M. (2021). Chapter 25 - Renewable energy in Bangladesh: status and potential. *Design, Analysis, and Applications of Renewable Energy Systems*, p.p. 607-625. DOI: https://doi.org/10.1016/B978-0-12-824555-2.00023-X

Nallapaneni, M.K., Ramjee, P.G., Mobi, M., et al. (2019). Performance, energy loss, and degradation prediction of roof-integrated crystalline solar PV system installed in Northern India. *Case Studies in Thermal Engineering*, Volume 13. DOI: https://doi.org/10.1016/j.csite.2019.100409

NationalGeographic. (2022). *RESOURCE TYPES*. [Online]. Available at: ">https://www.nationalgeographic.org/topics/resource-types/?q=&page=1&per_page=25>">https://www.nationalgeographic.org/topics/resource-types/?q=&page=1&per_page=25>">https://www.nationalgeographic.org/topics/resource-types/?q=&page=1&per_page=25>">https://www.nationalgeographic.org/topics/resource-types/?q=&page=1&per_page=25>">https://www.nationalgeographic.org/topics/resource-types/?q=&page=1&per_page=25>">https://www.nationalgeographic.org/topics/resource-types/?q=&page=1&per_page=25>">https://www.nationalgeographic.org/topics/resource-types/?q=&page=1&per_page=25>">https://www.nationalgeographic.org/topics/resource-types/?q=&page=1&per_page=25>">https://www.nationalgeographic.org/topics/resource-types/?q=&page=1&per_page=25>">https://www.nationalgeographic.org/topics/resource-types/?q=&page=1&per_page=25>">https://www.nationalgeographic.org/topics/resource-types/?q=&page=1&per_page=25>">https://www.nationalgeographic.org/topics/resource-types/?q=&page=1&per_page=25>">https://www.nationalgeographic.org/topics/resource-types/?q=&page=1&per_page=25>">https://www.nationalgeographic.org/topics/resource-types/?q=&page=1&per_page=25>">https://www.nationalgeographic.org/topics/resource-types/?q=&page=1&per_page=25>">https://www.nationalgeographic.org/topics/resource-types/?q=&page=1&per_page=25>">https://www.nationalgeographic.org/topics/resource-types/?q=&page=25>">https://www.nationalgeographic.org/topics/resource-types/?q=&page=1&per_page=25>">https://www.nationalgeographic.org/topics/resource-types/?q=&page=2&per_page=2&

Nur A.A.A.M, Jian, M.C., Nurul, A.N., et al. (2018). A study on association between tilt angle, solar insolation exposure and output of solar PV panel using BIM 3D modelling. *MATEC Web of Conferences*, Volume 195. DOI: https://doi.org/10.1051/matecconf/201819506009

Nur, H. A. (2022). *Higher energy prices to fuel higher inflation*. [online]. Available at: <https://themalaysianreserve.com/2022/03/10/higher-energy-prices-to-fuel-higher-inflation/#:~:text=According%20to%20the%20Department%20of,to%20January%20 2022%20(1.9%25)>. [Accessed on 4 April 2022].

Palmetto. (2022). *Solar Panel Payback Period (Guide)*. [online]. Available at:<https://palmetto.com/learning-center/blog/solar-panel-payback-period-guide>. [Accessed on 4 April 2022].

Phaphithoun, P. and Surachai, C. (2016). Estimation of solar radiation on the tilted surfaces in Songkhla, Thailand. *13th International Conference on Electrical Engineering/Electronics, Computer, Telecommunications and Information Technology (ECTI-CON)*, 28 June - 1 July. DOI: 10.1109/ECTICon.2016.7561242

Powerfromthesun. (2022). *Collecting Solar Energy*. [online]. Available at:<https://www.powerfromthesun.net/Book/chapter04/chapter04.html>. [Accessed on 4 April 2022].

Qasir, A. M, Abdul, Q.R., Khurshed, A., et al. (2021). Determining Optimum Tilt Angle for 1 MW Photovoltaic System at Sukkur, Pakistan. *International Journal of Photoenergy*, Volume 2021. DOI: https://doi.org/10.1155/2021/5552637

RE. (2020). *Net Energy Metering (NEM)*. [online]. Available at: <file:///C:/Users/Edbert/Downloads/001%20NEM.pdf>. [Accessed at 4 April 2022].

Reniers, G., Talarico, L. and Paltrinieri, N. (2016). Chapter 16 - Cost-Benefit Analysis of Safety Measures. *Dynamic Risk Analysis in the Chemical and Petroleum Industry*, p.p. 195-205. DOI: https://doi.org/10.1016/B978-0-12-803765-2.00016-0

RinggitPlus. (2022). *Best 12 Month FD Rates*. [online]. Available at: https://ringgitplus.com/en/fixed-deposit/12-month/>. [Accessed on 4 April 2022].

Scarlett, R. (2019). *Advantages of Using Python for Machine Learning*. [online]. Available at: https://medium.com/@scarlett8285/advantages-of-using-python-formachine-learning-8d2093697e8f>. [Accessed on 4 April 2022].

SEDA. (2016). *CO2 Avoidance*. [online]. Available at: https://www.seda.gov.my/statistics-monitoring/co2-avoidance/. [Accessed on 4 April 2022].

SEDA. (2022). *NET ENERGY METERING (NEM) 3.0*. [online]. Available at: https://www.seda.gov.my/reportal/nem/. [Accessed on 4 April 2022].

Sergio, H.A., Andres, S.G., Miguel, R.P., et al. (2020). A Solar Altitude Angle Model for Efficient Solar Energy Predictions. *Sensors* 2020, 20(5), 1391. DOI: https://doi.org/10.3390/s20051391.

SMA. (2010). CO2 Factor: Factor for calculating the amount of CO2 avoided in power generation. [online]. Available at: https://files.sma.de/downloads/SMix-UEN091910.pdf>. [Accessed on 4 April 2022].

SolarGis. (2022). *Online data and apps*. [online]. Available at: https://solargis.com/products. [Accessed on 4 April 2022[.

Solcast. (2022). Solar data services... in the cloud. [online]. Available at:<https://solcast.com/?gclid=CjwKCAjwi6WSBhA-EiwA6Niok3uPvto1fEVKWy0YeG1cGfRKIys5LmDMvtTYq26WzKQrWHJ6KZgp vRoCWs0QAvD_BwE.>. [Accessed on 4 April 2022].

Solynta, E. (2017). *Top Four Reasons Why Solar Projects In Nigeria Have Failed*. [online]. Available at:</https://solyntaenergy.com/2017/12/28/top-four-reasons-why-solar-projects-in-the-past-failed-in-nigeria/>. [Accessed on 4 April 2022].

Soteris, A.K. (2014). Chapter 9 - Photovoltaic Systems. *Solar Energy Engineering* (*Second Edition*), p.p. 481-540. DOI: https://doi.org/10.1016/B978-0-12-397270-5.00009-1

Susmita, M. and Ghosh, P.B. (2012). Estimation of carbon credit and direct carbon footprint by solar photovoltaic cells in West Bengal, India. *International Journal of Low-Carbon Technologies*, Volume 9, Issue 1, p.p. 52–55. DOI: https://doi.org/10.1093/ijlct/cts053

TMR. (2022). *Electricity tariff rate remains at 39.5 sen kWh for now*. [online]. Available at:<https://themalaysianreserve.com/2022/01/03/electricity-tariff-rate-remains-at-39-5-sen-kwh-for-now-says-tnb/>. [Accessed on 4 April 2022].

TNB. (2022). *NET ENERGY METERING (NEM)*. [online]. Available at: https://www.mytnb.com.my/renewable-energy/net-energy-metering>. [Accessed on 4 April 2022].

TradingEconomics. (2022). *Malaysia Inflation Rate*. [online]. Available at: <<u>https://tradingeconomics.com/malaysia/inflation-cpi></u>. [Accessed on 4 April 2022].

TradingEconomics. (2022). *Malaysia Interest Rate*. [online]. Available at: https://tradingeconomics.com/malaysia/interest-rate>. [Accessed on 4 April 2022].

TrinaSolar. (2017). *THE DUAL GLASS 72-CELL MODULE*. [online]. Available at: https://static.trinasolar.com/sites/default/files/PS-M-0473%20C%20Datasheet_Duomax%20M%20Plus_DEG14.XX%28II%29_Sep2017.pdf>. [Accessed on 4 April 2022].

UN. (2022). *Social Development for Sustainable Development*. [online]. Available at: <<u>https://www.un.org/development/desa/dspd/2030agenda-sdgs.html</u>>. [Accessed on 4 April 2022].

William, F.M. and Aron, P.D. (2013). Rotation Angle for the Optimum Tracking of
One-AxisTrackers.[online].Available
at:<https://www.nrel.gov/docs/fy13osti/58891.pdf>.at:<https://www.nrel.gov/docs/fy13osti/58891.pdf>.[Accessed on 4 April 2022].

WRI. (2020). *Global Forest Watch*. [online]. Available at: https://www.wri.org/initiatives/global-forest-watch>. [Accessed on 4 April 2022].

Yunus, K.T.M., Manzoore, E.M.S., Mithun, K., et al. (2019). Optimum location and influence of tilt angle on performance of solar PV panels. *Journal of Thermal Analysis and Calorimetry*, p.p. 511-532. DOI: https://doi.org/10.1007/s10973-019-09089-5

Zhang, D., Wang, H., Wang, X., et al. (2020). Accuracy assessment of the global forest watch tree cover 2000 in China. *International Journal of Applied Earth Observation and Geoinformation*, Volume 87. DOI: https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jag.2019.102033

Zhang, D., Wang, H., Wang, X., et al. (2020). The reference data for accuracy assessment of the Global Forest Watch tree cover 2000 in China. *Data in Brief*, Volume 29. DOI: https://doi.org/10.1016/j.dib.2020.105238

Zhang, H.T., Sun, Y.L., Wu, L., et al. (2016). Tracking mechanism and cosine effect study of Module-Heliostat Solar Collector. 2016 4th International Conference on Machinery, Materials and Information Technology Applications. DOI: https://doi.org/10.2991/icmmita-16.2016.87

Zoe, G., Efi, D. and Efthimios, Z. (2021). 12 - Public acceptance of renewable energy sources. *Low Carbon Energy Technologies in Sustainable Energy Systems*, p.p. 309-327. DOI: https://doi.org/10.1016/B978-0-12-822897-5.00012-2

APPENDICES

APPENDIX A: Python Programming Part 1: Read and Input File into Python

-*- coding: utf-8 -*-
Created on Fri Jan 21 22:03:10 2022
@author: Edbert
import pandas as pd
from datetime import datetime
from datetime import timedelta
from mpl_toolkits import mplot3d
import numpy as np
import matplotlib.pyplot as plt
from IPython import get_ipython
import math as m
import pytz
import csv
from datetime import datetime
start=datetime.now()
print(start)
''
$filepath = r'C: \label{eq:linear} best op \label{eq:linear} MEEK25110 \ PROJECT \ Project \ Report \ 1 \ Yearly \ Solar \ Irradiance \ Data \ ' \ ' \ ' \ ' \ ' \ ' \ ' \ ' \ ' \ $
filename = '5.862950268444186_100.53893544057493_Solcast_PT60M.csv'
$df = pd.read_csv(filepath+filename)$

-----'

APPENDIX B: Python Programming Part 2: Reconfigure the Datetime of the Input File into Malaysia Timing

Start handling the date/time # Dataframe 6 is the Period End in UTC timing df2 = (pd.to_datetime(df['PeriodStart']).dt.tz_localize(None)) + timedelta(hours = 8) #Dataframe 7 is the Period Start in UTC timing df3 = (pd.to_datetime(df['PeriodEnd']).dt.tz_localize(None)) + timedelta(hours = 8) #find the midpoint between two dates for easy plotting of graph # midpoint date = periodstart + (periodend - periodstart)/2 df4 = df2 + (df3 - df2)/2 '______' #create a dataframe of df11 for the sun position purpose df5 = pd.DataFrame() df5['Middle_datetime'] = df4

1_____1

'_____'

APPENDIX C: Python Programming Part 3: Determine the Number of Days, Angle X and Equation of Time

'------'
#find the day number, n, using middle_datetime
df5['n'] = df4.dt.dayofyear
print(df11['n'])
#find the angle x of the day number n, the x is in degree form
df5['x'] = ((360*(df5['n']-1))/365.242)*(m.pi/180)
print(df11['x_d'])
#find the equation of time EOT, the EOT is in minutes
df5['eot'] = (0.258*np.cos(df5['x']) - 7.416*np.sin(df5['x']) - 3.648*np.cos(2*df5['x']) 9.228*np.sin(2*df5['x']))/60
#convert the EOT hours to timedelta
df5['eot'] = pd.to_timedelta(df5['eot'], unit='h')
',-------'

APPENDIX D: Python Programming Part 4: Determine the Solar Time

```
#standard longitude of a location (EW) (E negative) (W positive) (malaysia = UTC + 8)
Lst = 8*15
LstEW = 'E'
if LstEW == 'E':
  Lst = Lst^*(1)
elif LstEW == 'W':
  Lst = Lst^{*}(-1)
#actual longitude of a location (EW) (E negative) (W positive)
#get the longitude angle from filename
Loc = float(filename.split('_')[1])
LocEW = 'E'
if LocEW == 'E':
  Loc = Loc^*(1)
elif LocEW == 'W':
  Loc = Loc^*(-1)
#solar datetime is the date and time of the solar time
df5['solar_datetime'] = df4 + df5['eot'] - timedelta(hours = (Loc - Lst)/15)
# print(df11)
  -----'
```

'______

APPENDIX E: Python Programming Part 5: Determine the Sun Position

```
_____
#Latitude angle of a location (NS)
#get the latitude angle from the filename
Lat = float(filename.split('_')[0])
LatNS = 'N'
if LatNS == 'N':
    Lat = Lat^{*}(1)
elif LatNS == 'S':
    Lat = Lat^{*}(-1)
#declination angle in degree
df5['decline_angle'] = np.arcsin(0.39795*np.cos(0.98563*(df5['n'] - 173)*(m.pi/180)))*(180/m.pi)
df5['hour_angle']
                                                    15*((df5.solar_datetime.dt.hour
                                                                                                                                  df5.solar_datetime.dt.minute/60
                                        =
                                                                                                                      +
                                                                                                                                                                                                      +
 df5.solar_datetime.dt.second/3600)-12)
                                                                           -----'
 #find the solar altitude angle, in degree
 #a = sin^{-1}(sin(d_a)*sin(lat)+cos(d_a)*cos(w)*cos(Lat))
df5['altitude_angle'] = np.arcsin(np.sin(df5['decline_angle']*(m.pi/180))
                *np.sin(Lat*(m.pi/180))
                         + np.cos(df5['decline_angle']*(m.pi/180))
                                    *np.cos(df5['hour_angle']*(m.pi/180))
                                             *np.cos(Lat*(m.pi/180)))*(180/m.pi)
df5['altitude\_angle'].values[df5['altitude\_angle'].values < 0] = 0.0
#find the solar zenith angle, in degree
df5['zenith_angle'] = 90 - df5['altitude_angle']
#find the solar azimuth angle
df5['cosA'] = (np.sin(df5['decline_angle']*(m.pi/180))*np.cos(Lat*(m.pi/180))
np.cos(df5['decline\_angle']*(m.pi/180))*np.cos(df5['hour\_angle']*(m.pi/180))*np.sin(Lat*(m.pi/180)))/(np.cos(df5['decline\_angle']*(m.pi/180)))*np.sin(Lat*(m.pi/180)))/(np.cos(df5['decline\_angle']*(m.pi/180)))*np.sin(Lat*(m.pi/180)))/(np.cos(df5['decline\_angle']*(m.pi/180)))*np.sin(Lat*(m.pi/180)))/(np.cos(df5['decline\_angle']*(m.pi/180)))*np.sin(Lat*(m.pi/180)))/(np.cos(df5['decline\_angle']*(m.pi/180)))*np.sin(Lat*(m.pi/180)))/(np.cos(df5['decline\_angle']*(m.pi/180)))/(np.cos(df5['decline\_angle']*(m.pi/180)))/(np.cos(df5['decline\_angle']*(m.pi/180)))/(np.cos(df5['decline\_angle']*(m.pi/180)))/(np.cos(df5['decline\_angle']*(m.pi/180)))/(np.cos(df5['decline\_angle']*(m.pi/180)))/(np.cos(df5['decline\_angle']*(m.pi/180)))/(np.cos(df5['decline\_angle']*(m.pi/180)))/(np.cos(df5['decline\_angle']*(m.pi/180)))/(np.cos(df5['decline\_angle']*(m.pi/180)))/(np.cos(df5['decline\_angle']*(m.pi/180)))/(np.cos(df5['decline\_angle']*(m.pi/180)))/(np.cos(df5['decline\_angle']*(m.pi/180)))/(np.cos(df5['decline\_angle']*(m.pi/180)))/(np.cos(df5['decline\_angle']*(m.pi/180)))/(np.cos(df5['decline\_angle']*(m.pi/180))))/(np.cos(df5['decline\_angle']*(m.pi/180))))))))))))))
s(df5['altitude_angle']*(m.pi/180)))
```

'_____'

APPENDIX F: Python Programming Part 6: Determine the Optimum Tilt and Orientation of Solar Panel for Total Maximum Solar Received for a year

·_____

```
df5['Dni'] = df['Dni']
df5['Dhi'] = df['Dhi']
beta1 = float(input("Input the minimum value of elevation angle:") or 0)
beta2 = float(input("Input the maximum value of elevation angle:") or 90)
beta = np.arange(beta1, beta2, 0.1).round(1)
# beta = np.arange(10, 70, 10)
# sa = np.arange(180, 181.1, 0.1).round(1)
print("Orientation angle:\n1. North (0)\t2. East (90)\t3. South (180)\t4. West (270)")
sa1 = float(input("Input the minimum value of orientation angle:"))
sa2 = float(input("Input the maximum value of orientation angle:"))
sa = np.arange(sa1, sa2, 0.1).round(1)
# print(beta)
# print(sa)
df20 = pd.DataFrame(index = sa, columns=(beta))
print(df20)
def generate_items(za, az, dni, df20, dhi):
  rd = m.pi/180
  for b in beta:
     for s in sa:
       cosiafc = np.cos((za)*(rd))*np.cos((b)*(rd)) + np.sin((za)*(rd))*np.sin((b)*(rd))*np.cos(((az)-(s))*(rd))
       solar_received = dni*cosiafc
       total\_solar\_received = solar\_received + dhi
       df20[b][s] = total_solar_received.sum()
  return df20
df20 = generate_items(df5['zenith_angle'], df5['Azimuth'], df5['Dni'], df20, df5['Dhi'])
print(df20)
# print(d)
```

146

 $df20.to_csv(str(Lat) + str(Loc) + '_tilt_and_surface.csv')$

maxvalue = max(df20.max())

op_tilt = df20[df20 == max(df20.max())].dropna(axis=1, how='all').columns.tolist()

op_sa = df20[df20[op_tilt[0]] == maxvalue].index.values

print (filename)

print("The optimum tilt angle and azimuth angle for the solar panel to obtained the highest total solar received (a year) is:")

print(op_tilt[0], "degree tilt angle.")

print(op_sa[0], "azimuth angle of solar panel.")

print("The maximum total solar received on the solar panel in a year is: ") print(maxvalue, "Wh/m2")

APPENDIX G: Python Programming Part 7: Model the optimum tilt angle in 3D Graph

```
def plottable_3d_info(df: pd.DataFrame):
  .....
  Transform Pandas data into a format that's compatible with
  Matplotlib's surface and wireframe plotting.
  .....
  index = df.index
  columns = df.columns
  x, y = np.meshgrid(beta, sa)
  z = np.array([[df[c][i] for c in columns] for i in index])
  # xticks = dict(ticks=np.arange(0, len(columns)/10, 5), labels=np.arange(0, len(columns)/10, 5))
  # yticks = dict(ticks=np.arange(0, len(index)/10, 10), labels=np.arange(0, len(columns)/10, 10))
  # return x, y, z, xticks, yticks
  return x, y, z
get_ipython().run_line_magic('matplotlib', 'qt')
### Transform to Matplotlib friendly format.
# x, y, z, xticks, yticks = plottable_3d_info(df20)
x, y, z = plottable_3d_info(df20)
from mpl_toolkits.mplot3d import proj3d
                         fig4 = plt.figure()
axes4 = fig4.gca(projection='3d')
axes4.scatter3D(x, y, z, cmap = "hot", c = z)
axes4.set_title("Total Maximum Solar Irradiation achieved a year (Wh/m2) for each elevation and azimuth of
solar panel")
axes4.set_xlabel('Elevation ')
axes4.set_ylabel('Azimuth')
```

axes4.set_zlabel('Total Maximum Solar \nIrradiation a year (Wh/m2)')

x2, y2, _ = proj3d.proj_transform(op_tilt[0],op_sa[0],maxvalue, axes4.get_proj()) annotate_s = 'Maximum Point =' annotate_s += "\n"

annotate_s += r'%.1f, %.1f, %f' %(op_tilt[0], op_sa[0], maxvalue)

label = plt.annotate(

annotate_s,

xy = (x2, y2), xytext = (-20, 20),

textcoords = 'offset points', ha = 'right', va = 'bottom',

bbox = dict(boxstyle = 'round,pad=0.5', fc = 'yellow', alpha = 0.5),

arrowprops = dict(arrowstyle = '->', connectionstyle = 'arc3,rad=0'))

from matplotlib.ticker import LinearLocator axes4.get_xaxis().set_major_locator(LinearLocator(numticks=10)) axes4.get_yaxis().set_major_locator(LinearLocator(numticks=10))

fig4.set_size_inches(18.5, 10.5) fig4.savefig(filename + '3d.jpg',facecolor='w')

def update_position(e):

x2, y2, _ = proj3d.proj_transform(op_tilt[0],op_sa[0],maxvalue, axes4.get_proj())
label.xy = x2,y2
label.update_positions(fig4.canvas.renderer)
fig4.canvas.draw()

fig4.canvas.mpl_connect('button_release_event', update_position)

APPENDIX H: Python Programming Part 8: Estimate the Environmental Impact of the Simulation

```
_____
"General Information of solar farm"
efficiency = 16/100 #%
solar_size = 1.2*0.6 #m2 per solar panel
rated_solar_panel = 115 #w
n_{solar_panel} = 105000
Total_capacity = (rated_solar_panel)*(n_solar_panel) #w
Total_solar_size = n_solar_panel*solar_size #m2
Energy_output = (efficiency * maxvalue)/1000 #kwh/m2
print("The energy output with the given efficiency, number of panel and watts is:", Energy_output, "kwh/m2")
"Presence of Carbon Dioxide"
Land = float(input("Please enter your estimated land remove for solar farm installation.\nArea(ha):"))
co2perha = 698.36 #CO2/ha
CO2_increase = (Land*co2perha)/(Land*10000) #tCO2/m2
print("The presence of CO2 in surroundings due to deforestation is:", round(CO2_increase,6), "tCO2/m2")
"CO2 avoidance factor"
location = str(input("Please enter your location of case study:\n1.Peninsular\n2.Sabah, Wilayah Persekutuan,
Labuan\n3.Sarawak\nLocation:"))
if location == '1':
  CO2\_avoid\_factor = 0.639
elif location == '2':
  CO2\_avoid\_factor = 0.512
elif location == '3':
  CO2\_avoid\_factor = 0.364
else:
  print("Default value fixed at location 1")
  CO2_avoid_factor = 0.639
Avoided_CO2 = (Energy_output/1000)* CO2_avoid_factor
print("\nThe CO2 avoidance factor in this location is:", CO2_avoid_factor, "tCO2/MWh")
print('Avoided CO2 in tCO2/m2 is:', round(Avoided_CO2, 6), 'tCO2/m2')
```

"Net Carbon DI=ioxide""
Net_CO2 = round(CO2_increase,6) - round(Avoided_CO2, 6)
print("The net carbon dioxide is:", Net_CO2, "tCO2/m2")
if Net_CO2 < 0:
 print("Remarks: Positive Effect!\nMeans that CO2 avoidance is higher!")
elif Net_CO2 > 0:
 print("Remarks: Negative Effect!\nMeans that CO2 avoidance is lower!")

APPENDIX I: Python Programming Part 9: Estimate the Economic Impact of the Simulation

'_____' "Calculate the annual income" tariff_rate = 0.395 #(RM/kwh) Total_income = Energy_output*Total_solar_size*tariff_rate print("The annual income generated by the solar farm is: RM", Total_income) "Calculate the investment cost" $module_price = 1.65$ inverter_price = 0.33 $misc_price = 0.72$ $install_work = 2.91$ sales_tax = 6/100Investment = Total_capacity*(module_price+inverter_price+misc_price+install_work) Total_invest = (Investment*sales_tax) + Investment print("\nThe total investment cost of the solar farm is: RM", Total_invest) "Calculate the payback period" $interest_rate1 = 1.75/100$ $inflation_rate1 = 2.3/100$ Real_interest1 = ((1+interest_rate1)/(1+inflation_rate1))-1 payback_p1 = (m.log(1-((Total_invest*Real_interest1)/(Total_income)))/m.log(1+Real_interest1))*-1 print("\nLow Interest Rate Case:\nThe interest rate: { }\t\tThe inflation rate: { }".format(interest_rate1, inflation_rate1)) print("The estimated payback period of the solar farm is: ", round(payback_p1, 2), "years") "Calculate the payback period another case" print("\nHigh Interest Rate Case:") interest_rate2 = 6/100 $inflation_rate2 = 2.3/100$ Real_interest2 = ((1+interest_rate2)/(1+inflation_rate2))-1 payback_p2 = (m.log(1-((Total_invest*Real_interest2)/(Total_income)))/m.log(1+Real_interest2))*-1 print("The interest rate:{}\t\tThe inflation rate:{}".format(interest_rate2, inflation_rate2))

print("The estimated payback period of the solar farm is: ", round(payback_p2, 2), "years")